
Kuna City Codes, Comprehensive Plan, and Maps are available on the City web site: 
http://www.kunacity.id.gov 

 

KUNA PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Agenda for February 28, 2017 

Kuna City Hall    Council Chambers    751 W. 4th St.    Kuna, Idaho 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chairman Lee Young 
Vice Chairman Dana Hennis 
Commissioner Cathy Gealy 
Commissioner Ron Herther 
Commissioner Stephen Damron 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes for February 14, 2017. 
b. 15-05-S (Subdivision) and 15-08-DR (Design Review) – Silvertrail Addition Subdivision; A request 

from Viper Investments, LLC, for preliminary plat approval and design review for a new residential 
subdivision. Applicant proposes 421 single family homes and 56 common lots (approximately 8.68 
ac.) on 130.55 acres already zoned R-6 in Kuna City. – Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. 

c. 16-12-AN (Annexation) – Renascence Farm and Mason Creek Farms; Applicants, Renascence 
Farm, LLC, Spaulding and Anderson and Mason Creek Farm, LLC, requests approval to annex 
approximately 165 +/- acres into the City of Kuna. Applicant requests the R-6 (Medium Density 
Residential) for all properties.  139 acres of the application are located between Ten Mile and 
Black Cat Roads, south of Amity Road. Approximately 26 acres are located near the NEC of Ten 
Mile and Lake Hazel Roads, east of Ten Mile and north of Lake Hazel. -Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law. 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
a. 17-01-DR (Design Review) and 17-03-SN (Sign): SSW Engineers representing Bi-Mart Corporation 

requests approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission (acting as Design Review Committee) for 
a new 32,000 square foot commercial building to house a new Bi-mart store, accompanying landscaping, 
parking lot, and signage within the future Ridley’s Family Center No. 2, Commercial subdivision. 

b. 16-19-DR (Design Review) – TNT Subdivision; AllTerra Consulting, representing Greg Bullock 
requesting design review approval for a new residential subdivision (see Public Hearing item 
4.a). -Staff Requests that this item be tabled until a date certain, so that the final ACHD staff 
report can be included with the packet for the Commissioners consideration. 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING 

a. 16-04-S (Subdivision) – TNT Subdivision; A request from Jaylen Walker, from AllTerra Consulting, 
representing Greg Bullock for preliminary plat approval for a new residential subdivision. 
Applicant proposes a 10 lot, 13 multi-family buildings for a total of 52 units, with the existing 
home remaining on site over approximately 4.76 acres already zoned R-12 in Kuna City. -Staff 
Requests that this item be tabled until a date certain, so that the final ACHD staff report can be 
included with the packet for the Commissioners consideration. 
 

5. COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND REPORTS 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
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PZ COMMISSION MEMBER PRESENT CITY STAFF PRESENT: PRESENT 
Chairman Lee Young X Wendy Howell, Planning Director X 
Commissioner Dana Hennis X Troy Behunin, Senior Planner X 
Commissioner Cathy Gealy   X Trevor Kesner, Planner II  
Commissioner Ron Herther X Nancy Stauffer, Planning Technician X 
Commissioner Stephen Damron Absent   

              
  
6:00 pm – COMMISSION MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
Chairman Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes for January 24, 2017 
b. 16-03-CPM (Comprehensive Plan Map Amend) and 16-10-AN (Annexation) Ashton Estates Subdivision; 

Requesting approval to amend the Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) Map, from Medium Density 
Residential to Mixed-Use General over approximately 50.6 acres into Kuna City with the following zones; 
C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial), R-6 (Medium Density Residential) and R-20 (High Density Residential). 
The subject site is located on the south-east corner (SEC) of Meridian and Deer Flat Roads. Findings of 
Fact and Conclusions of Law.  
 
Commissioner Gealy motions to approve the consent agenda; Commissioner Hennis Seconds, all aye and 
motion carried 3-0. 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING 
2. 16-12-AN (Annexation) – Renascence Farm and Mason Creek Farms; Applicants, Renascence Farm, LLC, 

Spaulding and Anderson and Mason Creek Farm, LLC, requests approval to annex approximately 165 +/- 
acres into the City of Kuna. Applicant requests the R-6 (Medium Density Residential) for all 
properties.  139 acres of the application are located between Ten Mile and Black Cat Roads, south of 
Amity Road. Approximately 26 acres are located near the NEC of Ten Mile and Lake Hazel Roads, east of 
Ten Mile and north of Lake Hazel. 
Kevin McCarthy: Good evening, my name is Kevin McCarthy address 9233 W. State Street in Boise. Tonight, 
before you, you have an application for an annexation and zoning for approximately 162 acres near Ten Mile 
and Amity. 139 of those acres are located south of Amity between Ten Mile and Black Cat roads, and are known 
as the Renascence property. The other approximate 25 acres is located on the east side of Ten Mile north of 
Lake Hazel. One of these parcels is known as the Mason Creek parcel, which will become part of the Caspian 
Estates project, and the other is a small parcel providing the path of annexation for the Renascence parcels. The 
Mason Creek parcel is contiguous to approximately 168 acres currently annexed into Kuna, along with the 
entirety of its’ east and north property boundary. At this time our client has elected to apply for annexation and 
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zoning only with plans to submit a preliminary plat in the coming months, assuming we have a favorable 
recommendation this evening and ultimate approval from the City Council. We are requesting a zoning of R-6, 
falling directly in the middle of the density allowed for land identified as medium density residential. This will 
allow for a variety of lot types across the site consistent with the city’s comprehensive plan, which will be our 
intent when we design the preliminary plat. We appreciate all of the work we have had with Troy to get through 
the application, we have reviewed the staff report and agency comments and have no objections to the 
conditions listed. With that I will answer any questions you may have. 
 
“No questions at this time” 
 
Chairman Young: Ok, then we will have Troy come on up. 
Troy Behunin: Troy Behunin for the record, Planner III, Planning and Zoning Department. The application before 
you tonight is 16-12-AN for the Renascence Farm and Mason Creek Farms annexation application, which 
includes some other parcels owned by other folks outlined in your packet. That would include the Spalding piece, 
the Anderson piece, the Kolson piece and also the former Roberts piece, which provides the touch for an 
annexation. The applicant, Tim Eck, has submitted all necessary items for this application and they have been 
forthcoming with all of the other requested information from staff to this point. The application has met all 
required noticing procedures and requirements, including a meeting with land owners that live within 300 feet 
of the property, actually staff gave the applicant a list that included properties up to about 320 feet, 300 feet is 
the minimum. Tonight’s meeting was also noticed with a flyer to the same people using that 300-foot list that 
was used for the land owner meeting prior to the application being submitted. The site was properly posted and 
a legal notice was printed in the Kuna Melba News and the applicant has complied with everything else that 
staff has asked for up to this point. This annexation request is a category A annexation as defined by the State 
of Idaho, which states that a land owner may request, from any given city, for annexation into their city limits as 
long as that property touches current city limits, which this applicant has been able to obtain. Notwithstanding, 
the fact that any property, at least for the city of Kuna, any property that touches the city limits is still eligible, 
whether or not it is actually in a defined, approved, or otherwise, any kind of other city impact boundary line. 
The only two requirements is that a land owner is willing and that they have a touch, which they have secured. 
The history behind this annexation request is quite a long one. We will sum it up by saying that staff, and when 
I say staff, I mean me, I have been working with the applicant on this application for more than four years and I 
have been working with other members of this audience for this annexation for the better half of seven and a 
half years. The applicant has finally obtained the necessary touch to the city limits and that is the reason why 
we are having this meeting tonight, because he is requesting this category A annexation. They are seeking an R-
6 zone, which is medium density residential, and that is the most common, or the typical zoning type for the city 
of Kuna and I know that this particular developer rarely hits the maximum allowed units per acre, but I will 
answer any questions, if there are any questions for him about the densities, but that is the zone that he is 
seeking, that is smack dab in the middle of the medium density residential definition. This project is not quite a 
half a mile away from the cities northwest waste water treatment plant on south Ten Mile road, just south of 
Lake Hazel. During 2008 when the city was going through its comprehensive plan update, the city did envision 
that this area would be included in the city limits at some point. Suffice it to say that a number of years have 
passed and there has been a number of contentious points with, not only the city of Meridian, but also with Ada 
County asking for a common ground on a city impact boundary line, which, in staff’s opinion, city impact 
boundary line is just a line on the map, because as I said before, category A annexation, there are only two 
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conditions, willingness by the land owner, and a touch. So, no matter what you hear, or what you have heard 
from anybody, if there is anybody who questions weather Kuna has the authority to annex this property, let it 
be known that, by state code, by Ada County code and by Kuna code, as long as the touch is obtained, it can 
take place. The city has provided for the means to provide sewer and water lines and service for the area s this 
treatment plant is real close to the project. I might be able to answer some questions later on, right now I hope 
that you have had a chance to review the packet, review all of the information by the government agencies that 
have responded and I would stand for any questions you might have at this time. 
Chairman Young: I’m not sure if it is really a question for you or the developer in this case. There was mention 
of a sewer facility out there for the existing subdivision out there and some of it may be somewhat temporary, 
or can one or the other… 
 
Troy Behunin: I’m sure the developer can actually address that question, but I do know that there is an 
opportunity for that facilitation to happen, but it is not a requirement. I can also expound on the fact that this 
area is included in what has been deemed and approved by Ada County as the Meridian City impact boundary. 
I know first hand and also a letter has been submitted by the developer that he has met, not only with Mayor 
De Weerd, he has also met with a council member and their lead council. This annexation will not go opposed…it 
will be supported by Meridian city and they will not have any objections, even though it is in their area of city 
impact boundary line and there is a really simple reason for it, in order for Meridian to service this area they 
would have to extend their lines a significant distance and they will also have to provide what’s called a lift 
station in order to do that. This land is gravity flow and will work better with gravity and mother nature for 
serviceability. But yes, that invitation has been extended to the Bitter Creek subdivision. 
Chairman Young: Are there any more questions for staff? 
 
“All No” 
Troy Behunin: Staff would also like to point out that there was a typo, it was brought to point out attention early 
this afternoon, in section J, Item one, it erroneously stated January 24th as the meeting for tonight. That is indeed 
not eh case. Staff will correct that to reflect tonight’s meeting date. I have also received, just tonight, a couple 
of letters of support, they are late exhibits, I will just give these to you now. 
Chairman Young: At this time, we will go ahead and open up the public testimony for those that are signed up. 
I have two people listed to testify. One didn’t indicate whether or not they wanted to. I will mention that, as far 
as when you come up, please state your name and address for the record and you will have three minutes to 
present your comments and then the timer will go off and we will ask you to please respect everybody’s time 
when the timer goes off. Afterwards the applicant will have a chance to respond for a few minutes as well. With 
that in mind I have listed to testify in opposition is Tim Kelly. 
Tim Kelly: Tim Kelly, my address is 3891 W. Daisy Creek Street, Meridian Idaho.  Chairman and commissioners, 
I’m here on behalf of Bitter Creek Meadows subdivision, I understand that if I’m representing the whole 
subdivision I might have 10 minutes, is that correct?  
Chairman Young: I will defer to Wendy on that. 
Wendy Howell: Inaudible 
Tim Kelly: I would just like to illustrate our position in regards to this development. The homeowners within the 
Bitter Creek subdivision submit this letter for record to show that (inaudible) opposed annexation plan for 
Renascence and Mason Creek Farms case #16-12-AN. We are not actually opposed to the development of this 
land in general, however we are opposed to the specific plan as written. We believe that when the land 
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development occurs, there must be an impeccable balance between property owners that have already 
developed and built and those with undeveloped property. In regards to the city of Kuna impact, I heard some 
things, I may be uneducated, or don’t agree with, but, after an exhaustive search of your website and 
comprehensive plan, It was difficult to locate anything that represents visual written evidence, that any 
consideration has been given to the area north of Lake Hazel and south of Amity between Black Cat and Ten 
Mile. The city of Kuna city impact map, dated 15 December, did not address any land development issues north 
of Lake Hazel road. The online interactive zoning map does provide visual representation, but everything north 
of Lake Hazel road is still RUT or there is one small area that has another zoning, but it is not R-6. The city of Kuna 
city zoning map has planning line at Lake Hazel and the area north of Lake Hazel zone is RUT, which is what we 
are zoned. The zone code for a compatible zoning code within the cities plan is only an R-2. It is not represented 
that Kuna established zoning districts, the two maps, I actually called the planning department and got two maps 
sent to me. One was an area of city boundary dated of August of 16, still nothing north of Lake Hazel and the 
ACI future land use dated December 15 still nothing that we could see that any planning has been done North 
of that line. Your housing development the 2015 city of Kuna comprehensive plan includes a section of housing 
goals, objectives and policies. Proposed plan is actually the antitheses of goal number two, which is to encourage 
logical and orderly residential development. The development is neither logical or orderly, it is a classic definition 
of leap frog. That definition, leap frog occurs when developers build new residences some distance from an 
existing urban area, bypassing vacant parcels located closer to the city. In other words, developers choose to 
build on less expensive farther land away from urban area that are more costly, and instead of more (inaudible) 
closer to the city. This project stretches a very long and narrow land path asking to place medium density housing 
beyond your area of impact. We understand that Ada County understands that your area of impact rests there 
at Lake Hazel. Your objective 2-1 states that insure the development proceeds a logical and orderly manner so 
that public services are provided in a cost-efficient manner. I ask where is the planning that supports medium 
density. Could planning only supports low density because if you look at your zoning code in low density you got 
exactly what you need there. We actually experienced the downside of leap frog development in Bitter Creek 
Meadows when it was developed. Because we had a solid commitment from the city of Meridian and our 
developer that services would be delivered. Homes were built, the developer of the city of Meridian failed us. A 
down turn could happen at any time for any number of reasons. We all need to learn from our experience with 
the Bitter Creek Meadow subdivision. As far as zoning, your code, you asked for a transition are between zones. 
I need to illustrate the area in the ground between the Bitter Creek Meadows subdivision is rural nature and is 
at both the city of Meridian and the city of Kuna’s planning area. It is our understanding the division line is 
actually disputed, but falls somewhere between Amity and Lake Hazel roads. We have already developed built 
our subdivision and are happy with the RUT zoning in which our homes have. Our neighbors outside of our 
subdivision have developed their properties in a rural or agriculture environment as well. The R-6 zoning as 
proposed is not appropriate for the area between Amity road and Lake Hazel. This zoning allows for a lot of 
range of housing types as does most of the city of Kuna’s zoning codes. There’s potential for a manufactured 
home housing development being placed on our back fence of homes that average half a million dollars. We 
believe an appropriate zoning in this area is low density residential district, R-2, even though manufacturing 
homes are still allowed in the R-2, it doesn’t make fiscal sense and the risk is greatly reduced. Our home owners’ 
association neighbors would support an R-2 zoning district. Furthermore, one of the purposes of the R-2 zone is 
to serve as a transitional buffer between rural areas and higher density urban development. R-2 zoning is not 
intended to provide a full range of urban services, which actually matches your current planning effort from the 
city of Kuna. Without a plat, which I know this process doesn’t require, we have no ability to weigh in on if it 
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would even work. Again, we oppose it because we have no idea what the developer is going to do there. 
Recommendations, respect the development already completed. Follow your housing goals objectives policy 
established, especially goal 2, encouraging logical and orderly residential development. Zoned property south 
of Amity road, east of Black Cat, north of Lake Hazel and west of Ten Mile roads should be R-2. We actually ask 
to suspend this process, the annexation and zoning, until a plat can be developed and there may be some 
negotiation, at least in our aspect, past our current position. There have been a few noticing issues, we had a 
meeting last night and I don’t have details, but I just put you on notice that there are some people that are not 
being notified in our subdivision. In regards to the support of the city of Meridian, we have actually talked 
extensively to a number of people in the city of Meridian’s staff. In the applicants letter it refers us to annex C-
1. The letter that I got, or the packet I got has no C-1 enclosure, so I cannot see what he is actually representing 
to have for support from the city of Meridian. We did have or call the Mayor’s office and the answer we got 
back, again, like they said, we are not going to oppose it, but we don’t support it. But that will be the only one 
allowed between Lake Hazel and Amity. So, why this one? Well, there may be another reason with the developer 
and the EDU connections he currently owns and assessed against it, so, we would like to hear what that status 
is and if that has anything to do with the push for R-6 zoning in such a rural area that is at the edge of your impact 
area and some will argue, beyond your impact area.  
Thank you. 
Chairman Young: Excuse me sir, can you hand me the list of names that you have for that? Thank you. 
Is there anybody not on this list that has not signed up that would like to testify? Ok, please step forward and 
state your name and address for the record, and write tour name and address on this for the city record. Thank 
you. 
Tracy Vetter: My name is Tracy Vetter, I’m a recent resident of this area, south 5377 Ten Mile, we are just 
outside of the proposed annex area. We purchased our property at the endo of July this last summer. We did 
get the meeting notice for tonight’s hearing, but we were not contacted by anyone at the city of Kuna for any 
sort of a property owners meeting. I’m not sure exactly when the meeting that Troy was referencing, when that 
was happening, but we were not contacted, nor were we aware of it. We got involved in this process pretty late, 
just recently as a matter of fact. We do have some concerns. We would oppose, as Mr. Kelly from the other 
subdivision, we have a ten -acre parcel in this acres, we would oppose this particular annexation as it is written 
for a couple of reasons. 1. It, just by the look of it from what I have seen is that it seems to be not a very sensible 
annexation, and if they work very hard to get this lower section, the only contiguous property there, apparently 
that is what has held it up for the past four years, it still doesn’t make sense you have one tiny parcel here, and 
then the rest of the annexed property is up in this area and as far as this map goes, which is the only notice that 
we received regarding this annexation, there is no contiguous land there. There is a leap from this property here, 
to the next property up above. As Mr. Kelly mentioned, this area right now is currently all in pretty much a rural 
or rural transitional area, that’s what we have, we have ten acres, we have horses, we plan to continue on that 
property in that fashion until they haul us out on a cart. So, it just doesn’t make much sense, both from your 
own annexation rules and what your requirements are. If you want to annex this part, fine, because it’s 
contiguous, the rest of this isn’t. Why would you go to the expense of providing services up here, when you have 
all of this property down here that is not part of this annexed area. It doesn’t make sense for the type of density 
that he’s talking about, and while Troy mentioned this developer is known for going less than the medium R-6 
density, well that’s all nice and well and good, but, who knows what, there is nothing that is requiring him to do 
anything less than that type of density. And clearly, this area is not meant for any heavier density than is what 
Mr. Kelly was talking about, which was the R-2 density. We would be willing to see some sort of annexation 
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perhaps in the future if it made sense, if it was truly contiguous, if there was a good reason to provide services 
to all of this property and it seem to make sense as a group, and if it was a density that was respectful of the 
properties that are currently there and how they are being used. At this point in time it is not. We think you 
should start over. Thank you. 
Chairman Young: One last time, is there any-body else that is not one here that would like to testify? The list 
that Mr. Kelly was speaking of. 
Wendy Howell: Chairman Young, if you could read the list of people that have signed up and verify that they 
had Mr. Kelly represent them, just to make sure we don’t miss any due process here. And verify that they are 
on the list at the same time. Thank you. The sign-up list to testify. 
Chairman Young: The only other name on the list is David Ferguson who didn’t indicate to testify or not.  
 
*from the audience, inaudible* 
 
Commissioner Hennis: Are we missing a sheet, because we don’t have their names on there? 
Wendy Howell: Does anyone have a sign-up sheet in their possession? 
Troy Behunin: Are there two pages there Lee? 
Chairman Young: Yes, nobody else has signed up. 
Wendy Howell: Then make sure you ask if anyone else would like to sign up. 
Chairman Young: Ok, so, Is there anybody else that is not on here that would like to sign up to testify? 
 
*from the audience, inaudible* 
 
Chairman Young: The list of names that Mr. Kelly gave us for people that he was representing from the 
subdivision. Then you are not on this list? Ok, then please come forward and sign up. Please state your name 
and address for the record sir. 
David Ferguson: My name is David Ferguson, I live at 3430 Lake Hazel Rd, Meridian Idaho, just up a little bit from 
the corner down there. We have lived there for quite a long time, long enough that I have seen three floods 
going on in that flood plane. One of them was quite young, 1951, and then there was another one, maybe, 1970, 
actually I purchased the farm in 1975. Anyways, we’re on the south side of the creek, so we get to see lots of 
things happening there. I am opposed to the R-6 medium density residential request. So, a fairly large portion 
of that property is on the flood plane and it’s been under water on at least two occasions that I have witnessed. 
But I have kind of fixed it up because I moved about this much rock off the bottom of that stuff, but I still worry 
about the fact that people who get on it will be stuck eventually with really high costs for having some insurance 
on the flood insurance, because I know some of that flood insurance goes pretty high. To make things real short, 
because of the flood plane, mainly, is, I have talked to the people who are going to do it over the years, they said 
well, leave it up to the engineers and we’ll take care of it, but I don’t see that it is actually going to work, especially 
when you think about what’s happened in southern Idaho here. What I really think would be best is to keep 
farming that place, ok? But beyond that, I think Kuna could use some athletic fields, and that would be a great 
place to put athletic fields because, even if you get water in there you can still survive without having to put new 
houses in. Ok thanks. 
Chairman Young:  Please state your name and address for the record. 
Dane Burns: My name is Dane Burns, I live at 5377 S. Ten Mile. On your map here, we are actually the center lot 
facing Ten Mile road that’s inside your proposed annexation. We have a ten-acre lot there, and if I am reading 
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this correctly, this R-6 would be six houses per acre, that would be, if we did the same thing to our ten acres, 
you could put 60 houses in there. For this kind of a rural area, that’s crazy, in my opinion it just makes no sense. 
If you look at the back where you are annexing, that’s our back property line, and you could put, I know there’s 
30-40 acres in there, you could figure out what that is at R-6. If you fill it up, you know the housing development 
where the gentleman just talked, even for us, that’s a pretty tight community in there. If you do that all the way 
through that, besides being a flood plane, which I know after this last storm, I saw it, it just makes no sense to 
make that R-6, it’s just totally inappropriate for the areas out there. Besides the leap frog effect, that’s all I’ve 
got. Thank you. 
 
*inaudible from audience* 
 
Chairman Young: Next I have listed on here is Leslie Anderson, please come forward and state your name and 
address for the record. 
 
Leslie Anderson: My name is Leslie Anderson, I am here with my husband Brent, 3985 West Amity road. We 
have a two-acre parcel right smack in the middle of this field, although we have filed a consent to annex, I truly 
feel the density, the R-6 is too great of a density even if it goes down to four per acre just by the developers own 
doing, then I believe that it is a rural area and an R-2 zoning makes much more sense at this point. I also wanted 
to, we walked in about six minutes late due to the detour on Ten Mile and I guess Lake Hazel, sent us quite a bit 
out of our way and so I don’t know if we missed any hand-outs, if there are any views of the actual subdivision, 
if it’s been platted, or any survey information, I mean, we got the green notice, is there any other information 
that was disseminated publicly? 
Chairman Young: No, it has not been platted yet. This is just for an annexation of the property at this point. 
Leslie Anderson: Ok, the packets that were described? About submissions of letters that Troy was referencing, 
are those publicly available here at this meeting? 
Chairman Young: They were just entered in. 
Leslie Anderson: Ok, I didn’t know if they were available, copies. 
Commissioner Hennis: On the city website, you can get all of our packets. 
Chairman Young: Next up, Mr. Ells. 
Christopher Wells: Christopher Wells, 5199 S Bitter Creek. I am in the Bitter Creek Meadows subdivision, I didn’t 
want to negate anything that he said, but I did not receive notice, he has my address as 10046 West Sandy River, 
which is a previous address from years ago. But our property again, also is abuts up to the proposed annexation, 
and again, did not receive notice, he went just off of county records, for some reason it still has out old address 
on there, even though we receive our county bills at our current address at 5199. We did not receive nor=tice. 
My main concern is, all of that, most of that property is in the West Ada School disctrict. West Ada, I know, 
school districts don’t really change. If that were annexed into the city of Kuna, people would have Meridian 
addresses, go to meridian schools and pay taxes to Kuna. If it were developed. West Ada schools are playing 
catch up all the time, they are always behind, and, again, with that high density or medium density development, 
has there been any consideration for the West Ada schools, again they said the city of Meridian wouldn’t oppose 
it, but they are not the school district. I just wanted to bring that up as a consideration as well that the city of 
Kuna is trying to, I don’t know if it’s the city of Kuna, but somebody is trying to annex and develop land that 
would have a large effect on the West Ada schools without the West Ada schools having any say about it. Thank 
you. 
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Chairman Young: Next we have listed to testify is Linda Lake. 
Linda Lake: Linda Lake, my address is 854 n Biltmore Avenue in Meridian, and I own property at 4655 Amity 
Road. I also represent Herma Sparks, who is my next-door neighbor and I have his consent, and he has 54 acres 
right adjacent to mine, the corner of Amity and Black Cat, all the way back to Mr. Eck’s property. Mr. Man is also 
here to speak to that, and he is on the south side of Mr. Sparks, and he has 16 acres there. We are in support of 
this project and my personal opinion is that our properties that are out there are on septic systems and wells 
and in addition to, so, the sewer being so close to us, our wells are old and our septic are old, and in fact mine 
has had already problems, and so for us to be that close to the city of Kuna and if our systems fail, it’s going to 
be a huge amount of money to replace those, so, that’s one of the reasons, that and the fact that we have held 
out properties for years and years waiting for the moment to get into the Kuna city, so we would be proud 
residents of that community as well. We support the density and we think that that is the perfect place for the 
city to grow to. There is lots of land out there, and I think the system is out there to support that land.  
Chairman Young: Next I have listed Clare Bowman. 
Clare Bowman: My name is Clare Bowman, I live at 4400 W. Legacy Lane. We are a subdivision on the south 
side of Mason Creek, immediately adjacent to the subject properties. I’m a very strong believer that a property 
owner has the right to do everything that is legal with their property, and there are areas like density that you 
folks get to make a recommendation about. I think the annexation is legal, it works, the density seems very high 
to me. We are also one and two-acre estate lots all along Legacy Lane. There will be eight of them shortly. We 
would expect the same kind of separation from dense family housing on our side that Bitter Creek would expect 
on their side. One of the ways to accomplish that is to use what Dave Ferguson suggested in the way of ball 
fields and exercise fields, parks, like that. Another is something Dave and I have talked about for years, which is 
to run a green belt down the north side of mason Creek. There is well over a half a mile of frontage there that 
could make an excellent start on a green belt for you out in that vicinity. That’s it, thank you very much. 
Chairman Young: That is everyone on the list? Is your name on the list and I did not call you? With that I will 
have the applicant please come forward. 
Tim Eck: Good evening Commission, my name is Tim Eck, I live at 6152 W. Half Moon Lane in Eagle. I have a 
narrative here that I would like to read first, and then I would be glad to spend some time and try to answer 
some of the many questions they have brought up. There is a lot of history surrounding the property included 
in this annexation zoning application. For years Kuna’s planning are extended to Amity with Meridians Lake 
Hazel. This resulted in a one mile overlap. Both cities started planning how to provide services to this one mile 
overlap, each assuming this mile would eventually annex into, and be serviced by them. At that time the path 
of annexation to Meridian was over two miles, and to Kuna was about a quarter mile. Today the path to Meridian 
is about one and a half to two miles, depending on the direction, and to Kuna, the applicant properties are 
contiguous. The path to Meridian is virtually impossible at this time, and for the extended future. There are 
significant land owners in the pathway to Meridian with no interest in annexation and opposed to annexing into 
any city. Meridian entered into an agreement with a developer, where Meridian would build a lift station within 
this mile that would connect to the Meridian waste water facilities, and the developer would bring domestic 
water from Meridian to this mile. Kuna researched and decided the best location for the Kuna north waste water 
treatment plant, would be at its’ present location, along the Mason Creek drain, and within the sewer shed, 
approximately one quarter mile south of this mile. Recognizing that the natural gravitational flow of this mile 
would bring the sewer to Kuna. As the national economy changed, Meridian and the developer entered into a 
nullification agreement, releasing each other from any obligations to bring services to this mile. While Kuna 
proceeded by building a waste water treatment plant at the approximate cost of 30 million dollars, with interest, 
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and brought, or is currently bringing sewer and domestic water services to within 800 feet of the Renascence 
property, less than a quarter mile. It’s obvious that the location of these facilities was with the intent to service 
this mile. Additionally, all land south of the Rossin canal, which includes all of the applicant properties, will gravity 
flow towards Kuna waste water treatment plant. Meridian proceeded with expanding their area of city impact 
to include this mile and, subsequently, abandon all plans to service this mile. Wanting to end the arm wrestling 
with Meridian, Kuna pulled their line on their comp plan map back to Lake Hazel, having already built the Kuna 
north waste water treatment plant, several hundred feet south of Lake Hazel, followed by extending sewer and 
domestic water services several hundred feet north of Lake Hazel. Kuna recognized that Idaho law provides the 
land owner the right to annex their property into any City that they become contiguous to, regardless of area of 
city impact lines, or city planning area lines, or comp plan maps. It’s the land owners option and right. Prior to 
pulling back their city planning area to Lake Hazel, …was included in the Kuna comp plan map, and in the Kuna 
comp plan text on pages 64 and 125. It is clear that Kuna anticipated this area becoming part of Kuna in the 
future. At one time, the area had a land use designation of medium density residential. The pull back on the 
map removed the mile from the map, but it still remains in the Kuna comp plan text. It should be recognized 
that based on the data from the Compas traffic area zones, and new waste water treatment plant, coupled with 
the nearby developments already underway, Kuna still identifies land in this application as being part of Kuna’s 
future and being developed with the overwhelming typical density, medium density residential. Kuna defines 
medium density residential as R-4 to R-8, that is 4-8 dwelling units per acre. We are not attempting to push the 
maximum density, recognized in medium density residential, we are simply asking for R-6 as a maximum 
number of homes per acre. In order to offer a variety of housing and comply with the goals and policies of the 
Kuna Comp plan. In addition to the land we own, there are four additional parcels that have recognized the 
importance of being in Kuna who have signed consents to annexation. One parcel we have under contract to 
purchase, the other three parcels have agreed to annexation to pursue their best interest, as annexation is the 
best way to allow them access to the city services, sewer, water, pressurized irrigation, that will be brought to, 
or near their properties as the applicants’ land is approved. I’ll speak to a couple of those properties. The 
Anderson’s property is a two-acre parcel with problems. One side of their house is within feet of the property 
line, they have structures on the west side of their property that are actually straddling their property line, that 
is significantly on our property. We will fix that. We will do property boundary adjustments with them to get all 
of the structures on their property fully within their adjusted property boundary and be in compliance with Kuna 
city codes. It’s just the right thing to do. The other two acre parcel the Spaldings’ own. We have surveyed every 
building on their property, as well as every building on the Anderson’s property at extensive costs. We have to 
design around what they’ve got to make it fit. It’s a lot of work to make that work. We have a sewer main that 
comes from the Bitter Creek Meadows subdivision that runs through our property. We have to build a road over 
that sewer main, I just can’t have it running under houses. The location of that road or that sewer main is going 
to require us to do what we intended to do anyway, we will build a series of buffer lots between our higher 
density and the Bitter Creek Meadows homeowners lots. My engineers are estimating that these will be 
approximately one acre lots, so they will see a very large lot buffer between them and our higher density 
product. Along the Mason Creek, there will be a pathway, as mentioned. I believe it is the cities policy. We will 
have a green belt and pathway on our side of the canal. My engineer will step up and speak later to the measures 
to be taken to analyze the flood plane, the flood zone, and everything necessary to make sure that we are not 
building residences on lots in the flood plane. The Bitter Creek home owners lost their connectivity to the city 
of Meridian for domestic water and city sewer when that nullification agreement happened between the city 
of Meridian and the developer. I was involved because I own the adjacent land and I got drug into the litigation. 
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Our project will build a waste water lift station. At the end, or slightly past the end of the existing gravity sewer 
main that comes out of the Bitter Creek Subdivision. I worked extensively and relentlessly with the past Mayor, 
the city engineer, to make sure that they would be willing to accept waste water from the 24 homes in Bitter 
Creek, without the requirement of annexation. That has been agreed to, so when we develop and build our lift 
station, it will be at the end of the sewer line, they will then be able to take all of their microbial plants off line 
and drain their waste water right down the gravity sewer main into our lift station pumped back to Kuna. Their 
problem is fixed for them. The concern about the EDU’s, we have a lot of EDU’s. Are you familiar with the EDU’s 
from the LID? We have a lot of EDU’s. We have land for three times as many EDU’s as we have, not counting 
this land. I have structured a deal with Meridian to work with them. They are actually going to cooperate with 
us, to a small extent, in the cost of the lift station, and they are going to secure EDU’s and all the homeowners 
in Bitter Creek will be connected to Kuna sewer without annexation. They will not get city water, they will not 
get pressurized irrigation from the city because to get pressurized irrigation from the city they have to be 
annexed, or it’s water spreading and the city cannot do that. The offer is there if they wanted to annex, we will 
connect them. If they don’t want to annex that’s fine. So their sewer problems are resolved. We will facilitate 
getting the Andersons’ property, all their structures on their revised lot. We will have one acre lots, 
approximately, don’t shoot me if they come back at .85. But, very large lots buffering the Bitter Creek lots, 
following the existing sewer line. We will work with the Saldings’ to try and figure out the best way to do a 
property boundary adjustment for them on their land. They have a two acre square, it doesn’t split up easy. 
They want to be able to split it up and get their son living next to them. We can help them with property 
boundary adjustments to give them a piece of land that’s dividable. It’s a foot of dirt for a foot of dirt. We’re 
actually solving a lot of problems. The city of meridian, I have had several meetings with them. The last meeting 
I had, they understand my annexation. They sat in chamber meetings with the city of Kuna, recognizing the fact 
that they have to support our annexation as a condition of their settlement agreement from the litigation that 
took place with the Bitter Creek homeowners to get them sewer, and the only way to get them sewer is by 
working with me in this development. I agreed to help them, I didn’t have to. I agreed to help them, Meridian is 
paying all of their sewer connection fees, we are going to reach a point we’re going to be able to turn that lift 
station on, all of their sewer problems are gone. With that, I stand for any questions, like I said, there is 8-10 
years of history with this project, about four since we have owned it, but I learned a lot about the project through 
the litigation we were drug into between the Bitter Creek home owners’ association and the city of Meridian 
and the developer that developed Bitter Creek Meadows. I don’t see this a leap frog when we are contiguous. 
The sewer, the project that is being built right now, there will be a gravity sewer main and water within 800-
700, I’m not exactly sure how far they are bringing it north on Ten Mile, there were budgetary constraints with 
them, but from that point on, we’ll take it. 
Chairman Young: are there any questions for Mr. Eck at this time? No. 
Tim Eck: I would like to allow my engineer to step up and he can maybe make a few notes on the flood plane 
and how that’s addresses. 
 
*inaudible from the audience* 
 
Chairman Young: He was just responding to your comments. That was his chance to respond to your comments. 
Tim Eck: An equivalent dwelling unit is a portion of a prepaid sewer connection. It’s based on the cost of building 
the waste water treatment plant each property that was involved was assessed a certain number of EDU’s, each 
EDU is $3233.75 toward your $4239.00 sewer connection fee.  
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Troy Behunin: Lee, at this time, I’m not sure that you closed the public hearing, so, you need to make sure that 
you do that. 
Chairman Young: Well, I can’t close it until after the applicant rebuts, correct? 
Troy Behunin: Actually, you can. 
Chairman Young: Then, if you would like to come up please. Oh, I apologize, we will let the engineer go first. 
Kevin McCarthy: Kevin McCarthy, 9233 W State Street. So, just to answer a couple of questions on the flood 
plane, and it is always great when somebody has lived near the property for that long, I will talk to him at some 
point about that and hear his experience on all of that. But there is a Fema flood plan associated with Mason 
Creek, and on Fema’s maps it’s a zone A I believe. Meaning that they don’t know exactly in a hundred year event 
what the elevation the water would be in Mason Creek. So, as part of this project in order to develop the 
property, we need to do that. So, we are in the process of doing a flood study on the property. What that entails 
is surveying cross sections through the creek, and in doing a hydrolic analysis to establish what those base flood 
elevations would be and how that compares to the actual elevation of the property. And then from there we 
determine really how to design the project, that’s going to be a heavily influence, where along Mason Creek we 
can back lots up to. In some cases you have to fill the property, and some cases you don’t, and we won’t know 
that until we complete the study. We started the surveying and then the snow hit and so we have not been out 
there in a while. We are in the process, but we still got a little ways to go. We will have that as part of our, when 
we move to the preliminary plat, that will have to be done. 
Chairman Young: Mr. Burns 
…Like Tracy said, we had not been notified for any of this, so I had a couple of questions since the gentlemen 
are here. We’re on the lots against Ten Mile and you were talking about one acre parcels for homes there, really 
good way to aleve some anxiety here, is you said you were thinking about doing, although you are not required 
to by law, if they rezone this, one acre parcels, how many one acre parcels you gonna do up against the housing 
development and our property? It sounds like you guys have a map, have this drawn out, have an idea of what 
you are doing for a plan, is that correct? Sounded like… 
Cathy Gealy: Excuse me, you, need to address your comments to us and then Mr. Eck will have an opportunity 
to respond to your questions. 
…Ok, I just thought it would be much easier to go straight to the horses’ mouth. 
Cathy Gealy: I understand, but we have protocol. 
…So I need to ask you? Ok, so I would like to know how many lots you have planned for one acre lots there, I 
would also like to know what you have done for traffic, with the traffic for Kuna decided to do, what Canyon 
county and Ada county, which are both going to be involved here. Once you put that many houses in there, and 
I would also like to know the total number of houses, besides the one acre lots, what else you are planning to 
do. Most importantly, the road access in and out of all of this stuff. That should do it. If you could answer those 
questions, I would be appreciative. 
Chairman Young: I will go ahead and close the public testimony at 7:08 and have Mr. Eck come forward and 
respond.  
Tim Eck: To answer the question about the design, as my engineer said the snow hit, we have been surveying a 
lot of information on the property, one thing we had to do is go out and dig up every man hole in the field of 
the existing development. There were a number of record drawings available, and they were all different. So we 
had to go dig up every man hole and survey every man hole to find out where that sewer main ends. Now we 
have to build a road over it. Consequently, we know approximately where that road is going to lay and it’s going 
to dictate some pretty good sized lots against Bitter Creek Meadows subdivision. Like I said, probably one acre 
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7/8 acre, they are going to be large. There is not enough room between this road and their subdivision. So all 
we can do is put big lots there. We have a lot of work to do to figure out how we are going to adjust their 
property to get all of their buildings on and build roads around, the sewer line runs directly south of your 
property. So there is going to be a road directly south of their property. There is just a lot that has to be done, 
we got shut down, like everything did when the snow hit, we can’t get out there and survey much in the snow. 
I’ll let my engineer come up now and speak to the traffic study that has to take place and the neighborhood 
meetings that will go through with the preliminary plat process. I stand for any questions. 
Kevin McCarthy: Again, just a reminder, tonight we are looking for the annexation rezone. In order to get a 
preliminary plat with the density and what the lots are all going to look like, we are going to go through this 
whole process again. We will go through a neighborhood meeting. We have noted the people that were not 
notified last time, we will make sure that happens this time. At that time, we will have a lot layout that everybody 
can look at in the neighborhood meeting, then we will go through P&Z and City Council again, to go through 
that approval process. As Tim mentioned, when we go through that, we will be working with the highway district 
and others to go through a traffic study, in order to do that, we need to kind of have an idea on what our lot 
count is going to be, and at this time we don’t know that because I really need to figure out where that flood 
plane is. S there is just kind of a few things we are trying to figure out, but having a zoning in place is obviously a 
great help. With that I will stand for any questions.  
Tim Eck: It is not completely out of procedure, we will never hit R-6, with so much open space for the Renascence 
properties, if it would ease everybody’s concern, and if it is proper procedure, we would be willing to change 
our request for R-6 on the Renascence properties to R-4. You have seen our plats before, they are generally 3-3 
1/2. I don’t know what we will be able to hit out there because we have, (inaudible) It’s Bitter Creek, we got the 
flood plane against Mason Creek, but it will be a very diverse project and we will never hit R-4, so if that makes 
everybody feel better, we’d be glad to drop our request for the Renascence to drop to R-4. 
Commissioner Herther: So, you are saying you won’t hit R-4? 
Tim Eck: No 
Commissioner Herther: Then what will you hit? 
Tim Eck: Probably in that mid three range. Again, we are going to get out there and we got a lot of work to do 
determining where the flood plane is going to be, where this road is going to be, how we adjust the other 
properties, R-4 is greater than we would hit. But I don’t think I can ask for an R-3.75. 
Wendy Howell: Just to clarify for the commission, you can entertain his change to an R-4, because it’s less 
intensive use. You can make a recommendation on that or the request on the application. 
Chairman Young: With that, that brings up our discussion.  
Commissioner Herther: This flood study needs to be done a little early. 
Troy Behunin: I’m sorry, we are going to have to ask everybody to stop talking because the commission can’t 
hear, staff can’t hear and the rest of the audience can’t hear, so please be respectful. I’m sorry, go ahead 
Commissioner Herther. 
Commissioner Herther: Well, I’m just concerned, the question was asked about how many lots, a number of 
houses and about a traffic study and I’m just thinking that there are so many questions that need to be answered 
before a decision can be made. 
Chairman Young: Well that is part of what the platting process is. Right now, we are just considering whether 
or not to allow this zone to come in. 
Commissioner Herther: An it would be zoned at an R-4. 
Chairman Young: If that’s the recommendation that we come to today. 
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Commissioner Hennis: Well, that’s going to determine how many houses they are trying to put into that facility, 
that proposal. 
Chairman Young: Then at that time they can design around that number of homes per acre and develop a plan, 
but until they know what they are going to be zoned for, they can’t… 
Commissioner Hennis: They can’t do a traffic study if they don’t know how many houses are going to be in there 
either. 
Commissioner Herther: At this point we need to know that we are looking at an R-4. 
Chairman Young: If that turns into our recommendation.  
Commissioner Hennis: Yes, that’s part of what we are looking at. 
Troy Behunin: Staff would like to point out that when a preliminary plat, which is required and it would also 
require a public hearing, just like tonight, when a subdivision is designed, then a traffic study will be warranted 
and required at that point and so will flood plane litigation. So, no, this is not premature, this happens all over 
the state. 
Commissioner Gealy: Sometimes we do get an annexation request with something similar to a preliminary plat, 
but it is not required. 
Commissioner Hennis: Now, one thing that they said is the R-4 for the Renascence, but what about Mason 
Creek? 
Commissioner Gealy: He said it would apply to everything. 
Commissioner Hennis: Is it all encompassing? Could I ask the applicant to come up and clarify that? 
Tim Eck: The offer was to reduce the density on the Renascence properties to R-4, leaving the Mason Creek 
property at R-6. I can tell you we do have a plat layout for that and I believe… 
Tim Eck: (speaking to staff): …Caspian? 
Troy Behunin: Yes I have, it’s under four, I can , that I do know. 
Commissioner Hennis: So then can we say that that R-4 would cover both areas? 
Tim Eck: If that engineer was here today I could confirm, if it is a real hang up I think we could say *inaudible* 
I’m certain the density is under four on Caspian. 
Commissioner Hennis: Ok. 
Tim Eck: I would like to leave it at six, but if it is a real hanging point we could go to four because I’m pretty sure 
it’s, that preliminary plat application is forthcoming in about a month and a half. 
 
Commissioner Gealy: So, to clarify again, when you say the Renascence portion, does that include those other 
four parcels as well. The spalding, the Anderson, the Roberts and the fourth one. When you say would apply to 
those as well? 
Tim Eck: I can say affirmatively on the Kolson’s, because we are buying that property, the anderson’s are here, 
I guess I would have to defer to them. 
Commissioner Gealy: Because you’re not building there. 
Tim Eck: No, and we are not buying their properties, we are just trying to fix them. 
Commissioner Gealy: But when we annex in we have to put a zone on all of the property weather you own it or 
not. 
Tim Eck: The other three applicants are here and R-4 is fine with them. 
Commissioner Hennis: Ok, thank you very much. So, I wasn’t sure if you could actually split, what you said makes 
sense, I mean if we access per parcel then we could split it up, it would be easier to keep that all, especially 
Mason Creek. That was the main thing that I have is, I just, I think we are getting too much of the same R-6 
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throughout the city. All of the things we have been seeing lately have been R-6 and above. I’d like to see some 
larger lots, some open areas in our housing, because we keep saying that we want to have a diverse amount of 
housing developments , yet, we all have medium density lately in the last two years probably. 
Chairman Young: See some more of that transition between… 
Commissioner Hennis: I measn, that’s the biggest thing for me, I think as long as we can go down into an R-4, 
and I know Mr. Eck usually tries to give us a lot of nice looking space and border lots and transitions, so, I would 
feel more comfortable with that because I would like to have some more larger lot type developments in our 
city. And also, if we annex into the city, I don’t think West Ada would be still providing the school services. 
Commissioner Gealy: The school district boundaries are different. 
Troy Behunin: Commissioners, actually, I got a cal today from the Kuna school district, they did not respond in 
time for their comments to be included with this packet, but I did talk with Kim Bekkedahl, they have indeed 
met with West Ada school district about this issue and there are other things at play that are going to leave the 
boundaries where they are right now. There has been no decision to change them, so the properties that are in 
their respective school district will stay as they are currently defined. The school districts and the cities do not 
share the same powers. 
Commissioner Gealy: The question I would have for staff is, was West Ada school district noticed in this 
application? 
Troy Behunin: They were not noticed. But staff did have a discussion with them and encouraged them to visit 
with West Ada and they did fulfill that request. 
Chairman Young: With changing to an R-4, I did have concerns about an R-6, I still, it is certainly not an R-2 but 
there , the lots will be a little bit larger and, as you said, we need to start getting a little bit of that transition land 
between some of the more, especially that far north. I think I would be in support of an R-4 designation in leui 
of an R-6 for their comments.  
Commissioner Gealy: In looking it over, I had two concerns and I think they were both addressed. One is…I know 
that you are at the preliminary stages of preliminary plats, but we are looking for amenities in these areas and I 
would like for you to consider, and you have offered, open space and pathways, especially along Mason Creek, 
which I think lends itself to. I’m also concerned about transitions between our larger rural areas and our higher 
density housing, and you mentioned that you were willing to put one acre buffer lots along some of those areas 
and I think that clearly addresses the concern about transition, so the amenities, the open space and the 
transitions are all addressed. My question for staff is, do we need to include that in our conditions of approval? 
Oh, and I also would support the R-4. 
Troy Behunin: Staff would request in your conditions of approval that you say that they work with staff when 
they come in with a preliminary plat. There is nothing for us to put in a concrete answer right now, because we 
are not looking at a subdivision plat, we don’t know what it’s doing to look like, but you can request that they 
work with staff to meet all standards, and you can certainly request that they consider things, but there is no 
reason to make any concrete recommendations. 
Wendy Howell: You can state that the applicant shall put in pathways, just don’t be very specific because we 
don’t know what the design is. 
Chairman Young: then at the time the preliminary plat comes in we can address some of that at the same time 
I believe.  
Commissioner Gealy: It seems better to bring it up before the preliminary plat is drawn, than after the 
preliminary plat comes in. So, I appreciate the applicants willingness to provide those amenities and transitions. 
Chairman Young: Anything else, any thoughts?  
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Commissioner Hennis: Mr. Chairman I move to recommend approval of  16-12-AN (Annexation)  with 
conditions noted in the staff report and the revision of the properties being zoned to an R-4 as 
accepted by the applicant, also for the applicant to work with staff during the preliminary plat to 
consider some amenities and paths as we have talked about tonight, especially along the proposed  
greenbelt area along Mason Creek and the transition lots near the Bitter Creek subdivision.  
Commissioner Gealy Seconds, all aye and motion carried 3-0. 
 

Wendy Howell: Wendy Howell, Planning and Zoning Director. We have made a decision on a recommendation 
from the consultants group from the proposals that we had gotten in for the comp plan and that should be 
going in front of the City Council on their next hearing date, which I believe is next Tuesday. That 
recommendation will be going forward from the selection committee’s decision on who they think is the best 
fit and to start negotiating a price. We are probably starting right away in March… start actively moving on it. 
Commissioner Hennis: I remember it taking like two years last time before we signed. 
Wendy Howell: I have it proposed for 18 months, and that is with a lot of community involvement, that was 
in my RFP. 
 

2. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Commissioner Gealy motions to adjourn at 7:40 pm; Commissioner Hennis Seconds, all aye and motion carried 
3-0. 
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A. Process and Noticing: 

1. Kuna City Code (KCC), Title 1, Chapter 14, Section 3, states that subdivisions are designated as public hearings, 
with the City Council as the decision making body. These land use applications were given proper public notice 
and followed the requirements set forth in Idaho Code, Chapter 65 Local Planning Act. 

          P.O. Box 13 
Phone: (208) 922-5274 
Fax:     (208) 922-5989 
www.Kunacity.id.gov 

 



 
Page 2 of 10  File No.s 15-05-S  
2/14/17               P: P&Z\SHARED\CASES\Subs\ Silver Trail Addition Sub 
 

a. Notifications 
i. Neighborhood Meeting    July 20, 2015 (seven persons attended) 
ii. Agency Comment Request    October 23, 2015 
iii. 315’ Property Owners Notice  January 12, 2017 
iv. Kuna, Melba Newspaper    December 28, 2016 
v. Site Posted      January 13, 2017 

 

B. Applicant’s Request: 
On behalf of Viper Investments, LLC, David Crawford with B & A Engineers, is requesting approval for a 
preliminary plat over approximately 130.55 acres, currently zoned R‐6 (Medium Density Residential). The 
applicant proposes to subdivide three properties into 421 buildable lots and 56 common lots. The subject 
site is located on the south side of Columbia Road, between Ten Mile and Linder Roads. The south west 
corner of this project touches the east end of Mason Creek Street, which is south of Silvertrail Elementary 
school. 
 

C. Aerial Map:  

 
  
 

   
 
 

                                                                         ©Copyrighted 
D. Site History:  

This site is in the City, and has been undeveloped for many years. It is adjacent to four existing subdivisions. Three 
are County subdivisions, while one is a City subdivision. Two of the subject properties are lots within the Danskin 
Ridge subdivision. Historically, it has been farmed. 
 

E. General Projects Facts:  
1. Comprehensive Plan Map: The Future Land Use Map (Comp Plan Map) is intended to serve as a guide for 

the decision making body for the City. This map indicates land use designations generally speaking, it is not 
the actual zone. The Comp Plan Map identifies this entire site as Medium Density Residential. The range for 
Medium Density is 4 ‐ 8 dwelling units per acre (DUA). 
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2. Recreation and Pathways Map: The Recreation and Pathways Master Plan Map indicates a future trail along 
the southwest boundary of the site, situated along the Kuna Canal. 
 

 
 

3. Surrounding Land Uses:           
North  RR, A  Rural Residential & Agriculture – Ada County and Kuna City 

South  RR  Rural Residential – Ada County

East  RR, A  Rural Residential & Agriculture – Ada County and Kuna City 

West  RR, R‐6  Rural Residential & Medium Density Residential – Ada County and Kuna City 

 
4. Parcel Sizes, Current Zoning, Parcel Number(s): 

 Project Size in total: 130.55 acres (approximately) 

 Zoning:  R‐6; Medium Density Residential, Kuna; for all parcels 

 Parcel #: R1727750100 (74.2 ac.) Lot 68, Block 1, Danskin Ridge Sub No. 6, 
Parcel #: S1311111350 (48.7 ac.) 
Parcel #: R1727730050 (7.5 ac.) Lot 52, Block 1, Danskin Ridge Sub No. 4. 
 

5. Services: 
  Sanitary Sewer– City of Kuna 
  Potable Water – City of Kuna 
  Irrigation District – Boise‐Kuna Irrigation District 
  Pressurized Irrigation – City of Kuna (KMID) 
  Fire Protection – Kuna Rural Fire District 
  Police Protection – Kuna Police (Ada County Sheriff’s office) 
  Sanitation Services – J&M Sanitation 

 
6. Existing Structures, Vegetation and Natural Features:  

The land is being used for agricultural purposes. Applicant anticipates that the land will continue the historic 
Ag. uses on the lands until development occurs. This site is generally flat, with a slight slope from the center 
of the site to the west and south west, generally. 
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7.   Transportation / Connectivity:  
The applicant proposes two access points on Columbia Road. The applicant has also proposed extending the 
mid‐mile  road  (Mason Creek Street) on  the entire south side of  the project which  runs east‐west. As  the 
project develops, additional points of access will be provided through proposed stub streets. 
 

8. Environmental Issues:  
Staff is not aware of any environmental, health or safety conflicts. 

 
9. Agency Responses:  

The following agencies returned comments: City Engineer (Gordon Law, P.E.) Exhibit B 1, Ada County Highway 
District (Mindy Wallace) Exhibit B 2, Boise Project Board of Control (Bob Carter) Exhibit B 3, Central Dist. Health 
Dept. (Lori Badigian), Exhibit B 4, Idaho Transportation Department (ITD) Exhibit B 5, which are included with 
this case file and are included with this report. 
 

F. Staff Analysis: 
  This subdivision application involves two lots within recorded plats, and an un‐platted City parcel. All three 

properties  are  in  Kuna  City  limits  and  already  zoned  R‐6  (Medium  Density  Residential).  This  project  is 
adjacent to four other platted subdivisions and is adjacent to a minor arterial (Columbia Rd.) and touches 
another mid‐mile collector road (Mason Creek St.). All major public utilities are near, or adjacent to this site. 
Applicant  intends  to  prepare  the  site  for  a  new  single‐family  housing  development  to  be built over  an 
anticipated 13 phases. Applicant believes full build‐out will be achieved  in approximately 13 years,  if one 
phase per year (or 40 homes) is developed. The applicant is prepared to adjust their timeline with market 
demands. 

 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
   
  Staff has reviewed Kuna’s Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan), which encourages a variety of housing types 

and income levels numerous times throughout the Comp Plan. The sections of the Comp Plan that address 
housing  types are  included below,  in Section K  (Comp Plan analysis) of  this  report. The City attempts  to 
balance all housing types within the City. The project site is already zoned R‐6 (Medium Density Residential) 
and the applicants request for a gross density of 3.65 dwellings per acre,  is well under the existing zones 
density limits of six units per acre. Staff has reviewed the preliminary plat for technical compliance with KCC 
Chapter 6, and has determined that it appears to conform to KCC as required. Staff would recommend that 
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the applicant work with Kuna Rural Fire District (KRFD) to conform to the secondary access limits of the KRFD, 
for the number of homes utilizing access points. 

 
  The applicant has proposed a landscape buffer adjacent to Columbia Road and another landscape buffer on 

the south side of the project between the homes that will back the extended Mason Creek Street and the 
roadway. The applicant also proposes to install landscaping on both sides of a required north‐south mid‐mile 
collector (future School Avenue) that will be constructed near the middle of the project. The landscape plan 
provides other landscaped areas throughout the subdivision at the end of streets, and in landscape pockets. 
Staff has  reviewed  the  landscape plan,  and determined  it  appears  to  follow Kuna City Code 5‐17.  Staff 
recommends the applicant add two notes to the landscape plan for planting requirements, and submit an 
11 X 17  for approval bearing  the  requested  changes  that are  listed  in  the Recommended Conditions of 
Approval. The applicant has proposed 8.68 acres for open space, which is 6.65% of the projects area. 

 
  Staff has determined this application complies with its current zone and Title 5 and 6 of the Kuna City Code; 

Idaho Statute § 67‐6511; and the Kuna Comprehensive Plan; and forwards a recommendation of approval 
for Case No. 15‐05‐S subject to any conditions of approval outlined by Commission. 

 

G. Applicable Standards: 
1. City of Kuna Zoning Ordinance  Title 5, Chapter 13 

2. City of Kuna Comprehensive Plan, adopted September 1, 2009 

3. City of Kuna Design Review Code Title 5, Chapter 4 

4. City of Kuna Landscape Code Title 5, Chapter 17. 

5. Idaho Code, Title 67, Chapter 65‐ the Local Land Use Planning Act. 
 

H. Procedural Background: 
On  January  24,  2017,  the  Commission  considered  case  number  15‐05‐S,  including  the  application,  agency 
comments, staff’s report, application exhibits and public testimony presented or given. 
 

I. Factual Summary: 
This site is located on the south side of Columbia Road, between Ten Mile and Linder Roads. The project consists 
of 130.55  (approx.) acres  that are already  in  the City  limits and  currently  zoned R‐6  (Med. Den. Residential). 
Applicant  requests preliminary plat approval  for a new subdivision of 421 buildable  lots, and 56 common  lots 
consisting of 13 development phases. If approved, this project will take access from Columbia Road in two places, 
and a third access from a classified road will come from Mason Creek Street in the SWC of the project. Additionally, 
this project will extend the mid‐mile road to the east, and provide multiple access points for future projects. 
 

J. Commission’s Findings of Fact: 
Based upon  the  record  in 15‐05‐S,  including  the Comprehensive Plan, Kuna City Code, Staff’s memorandums, 
including the exhibits, and the testimony elicited during the public hearing, the Commission hereby recommends 
approval for Case No. 15‐05‐S, a request for a subdivision preliminary plat request by the applicant as follows: 
 
The Commission concludes that the Application complies with the City of Kuna’s Zoning regulations (Title 5) of KCC 
and/or the Subdivision regulations outlined in title 6 of KCC. 
 

1. In making  a  decision  regarding  the  Subdivision  application,  the  Council  is  to  consider  Idaho  Code  §67‐
  6535 (2), which states the following: 

The approval or denial of any application required or authorized pursuant to this chapter shall 
be in writing and accompanied by a reasoned statement that explains the criteria and standards 
considered relevant, states the relevant contested facts relied upon, and explains the rationale 
for  the  decision  based  on  the  applicable  provisions  of  the  comprehensive  plan,  relevant 
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ordinance and statutory provisions, pertinent constitutional principles and factual information 
contained in the record. 

 
In addition, Idaho Code §67‐6535(2)(a), provides that:   

Failure to identify the nature of compliance or noncompliance with express approval standards 
or  failure  to  explain  compliance  or  noncompliance with  relevant  decision  criteria  shall  be 
grounds for invalidation of an approved permit or site‐specific authorization, or denial of same, 
on appeal. 

 

2. The Commission has  the authority  to  recommend approval or denial Case No. 15‐05‐S.   On  January 24, 
  2017, Kuna’s Commission voted to recommend approval of Case No. 15‐05‐S. 
 

3. The public notice requirements were met and the public hearing was conducted within the guidelines of 
  applicable  Idaho  Code  and  City  Ordinances  to  hold  a  public  hearing  on  January  24,  2017  with  the 
  Commission. 
 

K.  Commission  Comprehensive  Plan 
Analysis: 
Commission  determines  the  proposed 
subdivision for the site is consistent with the 
following Comp Plan components: 
 
Housing: 
Residents envisioned higher densities  in  the 
City’s core to include opportunities for mixed 
residential and light commercial activity. They 
expressed interest in a mix of residential type 
dwellings  applications;  including  single‐ 
family,  multi‐family,  apartments  and 
condominiums.  They  were  receptive  to  a 
greater mix  of  lot  sizes  and  house  price  to 
appeal  to  a  variety  of  people.  A  goal 
expressed by many was  the preservation of 
large  lots  and  rural  cluster  development  in 
appropriate  balance with  a  complement  of 
other types of residential development (Page 
21 [CP]). 
              
Comment:    The  Comp  Plan  and  the 
corresponding Future Land Use Map (with land use designations) 
provides for medium density (R‐6). This project has proposed a 
density of  less than six units per acre, therefore  it conforms to 
the Comp Plan and the Future Land Use Map. 

                            Legend 
 
Private Property Rights Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 2 ‐ Summary: 
Ensure the City land use policies, restrictions, conditions and fees do not violate private property rights and ensure 
that land use actions, decisions, and  regulations do not effectively eliminate all economic value of  the subject 
property. Ensure that City land use actions, decisions, and regulations do not prevent a private property owner 
from  taking advantage of a  fundamental property  right and staff shall evaluate with guidance  from  the City’s 
attorney; the Idaho Attorney General’s six criterion established to determine the potential for property taking.  
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Comment: Utilizing the Idaho Attorney General’s criteria, and a review by the City Attorney, the proposed project 
does not constitute a “takings” and the Economic value is intact. 
          
Economic Development Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 5 ‐ Summary:               
Ensure an adequate supply of housing for all income levels and facilitate pedestrian connections, both visually and 
physically, to enhance pedestrian movement (Pg. 42 – 1.5 and Pg. 43 – 3.1 [CP]). 
 
Comment: The Comp Plan encourages adequate housing for all income levels and calls for increasing pedestrian 
connections.  This  project  supplies  a  number  of  additional  housing  types  to  Kuna’s  inventory  and  provides 
opportunities  for quality housing. This development enhances  the City’s pedestrian network  for non‐motorized 
transportation, by proposing pathway connections to other subdivisions and the nearby elementary school. 
 
Land Use Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 6 ‐ Summary: 
Adopt a future land use plan and map that includes natural and developed open spaces, while providing a variety 
of housing densities and  types  to accommodate various  lifestyles, ages and economic groups. Protect existing 
neighborhoods  and  ensure  new  development  is  sustainable  and  keeps  Kuna  desirable.  Develop  cohesive 
neighborhoods with character and quality while incorporating a variety of densities and styles (Pg. 64 – 3.1 & Goal 
3 and Pg. 65 – 4.3 [CP]). 
 
Comment: This project adds a number of quality housing varieties to the City’s inventory for all types of lifestyles, 
ages and economic groups. This project also proposes 6.65% open space which adds to the greenspaces in Kuna, 
keeping it a desirable City while enhancing the City’s overall pathway network. 
 
Housing Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 12 ‐ Summary: 
Encourage developers to provide high‐quality development with a variety of  lot sizes, dwelling types, densities 
and price points to meet the needs of current and future population while creating safe and aesthetically‐pleasing 
neighborhoods. Ensure housing is available throughout the community for all income levels and those with special 
needs. Encourage logical and orderly residential development while discouraging developers from developing land 
divisions greater than one half acre because large lot subdivisions increase municipal costs, require public subsidy 
and create sprawl (Pg. 155 – Obj. 1.1, Pg. 163 12.4 and Pg. 165 – 2.1 [CP]). 
Encourage mixed‐use development that  includes town centers, single‐family, multi‐family, accessory units, and 
other types of residential development. – Policy 1.1.2, Section 12, Housing (Page 155 [CP]). 
 
Comment: Applicant proposes a high‐quality development with a variety of dwelling types, densities, and price 
points for all income levels in this part of Kuna as encouraged by the Comp Plan. This project significantly adds to 
the  City’s  overall  network  of  utilities,  sidewalks  and  roadways,  therefore  it  complies  with  logical,  orderly 
development and discourages  land divisions and development greater than one half acre, and avoids  increased 
municipal services costs and sprawl. 
 
Community Design Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 13 ‐ Summary: 
Strengthen  Kuna’s  Image  through  good  community  and  urban  design  principles  that  create  self‐sufficient 
neighborhoods. Foster good community design concepts that incorporate landscape features to serve as buffers 
between  incompatible uses while  reducing scale and creates a sense of place  (Pg.167 – Goal 1 and Pg. 168 – 
1.2[CP]). 
 
Comment: Applicant proposes good  community and urban design principles  through  creation of greenspaces, 
extension of the pedestrian pathway network and adding to the City’s sidewalk network. Applicant also proposes 
extending Mason Creek Street, which adds to the roadway system thereby complying with the adopted Master 
Street Plan of Kuna (Functional Classified Road Map). This development also incorporates landscape buffers, and 
creates a sense of place for citizens. Therefore, this project fosters sound community design concepts and complies 
with the Comp Plan goals and strengthens Kuna’s image. Applicant has proposed a positive affect for adjoining 
property owners by developing under the allowed densities of the R‐6 zone (3.65 Gross Density).  
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Neighborhoods: 
Kuna’s updated Plan is an advocate for the development of self‐sufficient neighborhoods. These neighborhoods 
are intended to be connected by transit and other non‐motorized methods of transportation. Each neighborhood 
will have a center, a core and an edge (Page 179 [CP]). 
 
Comment: Applicant proposes an extension of the sidewalk and roadway system which complies with the Master 
Street Plan adopted by Kuna. Applicant also proposes connections to adjacent neighborhoods by adding pathways 
and sidewalks for pedestrian and non‐motorized transportation. Applicant proposes R‐6 housing densities thereby 
complying with Medium Density land use designation outlined within the Comp Plan and Comp Plan Map. 

 

L. Commission’s Idaho State Code Analysis:  

 
1. IC §67‐6511 (2) C requires that the Commission analyze the proposed changes to zoning ordinances to ensure 

that they are not in conflict with the policies of the adopted comprehensive plan. If the request is found by 
the governing board to be in conflict with the adopted plan, or would result in demonstrable adverse impacts 
upon the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services, including school districts, 
within the planning jurisdiction. 
 

2. IC §67‐6513 provides that the City provide for mitigation of the effects of subdivision development on the 
ability of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver services without compromising 
quality of service delivery to current residents or imposing substantial additional costs upon current residents 
to accommodate the proposed subdivision. 

 

3. Through discussions  and  comments  submitted  by public  service  providers,  the project would not  create 
demonstrable adverse  impact  to quality of emergency  service and/or delivery of  said  services, or  impose 
substantial additional costs to current residents. 

 

M. Commission’s Conclusions of Law: 
The public notice requirements have been met and the neighborhood meeting was conducted within the 
guidelines of applicable Idaho Code and City Ordinances. 
1. The Commission  feels  the  site  is physically  suitable  for  subdivision  and development  into  a  single‐family 

subdivision, as proposed. 
 

Comment: The 130.55 acre (approximate) project appears to be suitable for subdivision and development 
as single‐family subdivision, as proposed. 
 

2.  The subdivision uses are not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or avoidable injury to wildlife 
or their habitat. 

 
Comment: The land to be subdivided is not used as wildlife habitat.  Roads, driveways, family units and open 
spaces are planned for construction according the City and ACHD requirements and best practices and will 
therefore not cause environmental damage or loss of habitat. 

 

3. The rezone and subdivision applications are not likely to cause adverse public health problems. 
 
  Comment: The subdivision of the property would comply with the Comp Plan. The project would connect to 
  public  sewer  and  potable water  systems,  therefore  eliminating  the  occurrence  of  adverse  public  health 
  problems.  
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4. The application appears  to avoid detriment  to  the present and potential surrounding uses;  to  the health, 
  safety,  and  general welfare  of  the  public  taking  into  account  the  physical  features  of  the  site,  public 
  facilities and existing adjacent uses. 
 
Comment: Through correspondence with public  service providers and application evaluation,  this project 
appears to avoid detriment to surrounding uses.  Commission did consider the subdivision and the location 
of the property with adjacent uses.  

 

5. The existing and proposed street and utility services  in proximity to the site are suitable or adequate for 
residential purposes. 

 
  Comment: Correspondence from ACHD and Kuna Public Works confirms that the streets and utility services 
  are suitable and adequate for the residential project. 
 

6. Based on the evidence contained in Case No. 15‐05‐S, Commission finds Case No. 15‐05‐S adequately complies 
with Kuna City Code. 
 

7. Based on the evidence contained in Case Nos. 15‐05‐S, Commission finds Case No. 15‐05‐S, generally complies 
with Kuna’s Subdivision Code. 

 
N. Recommended Conditions of Approval: 

On January 24, 2017, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend conditional approval for Case No. 
15‐05 S based on the facts outlined  in staff’s memo and the public testimony during the public hearing by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of Kuna, Idaho, the Commission hereby recommends approval for Case No. 15‐
05‐S,  a  Preliminary  Plat  and  Subdivision  request  from David Crawford  (B&A  Engineers)  and  Tim  Eck with DB 
Development, with the following conditions of approval to Commission: 
 
‐ Applicant  shall  follow  all  conditions  outlined  in  the  staff memo,  City  Engineers  comments,  and  all  other 
applicable agency comments. 

 

1. The applicant and/or owner  shall obtain written approval on  letterhead or may be written/stamped on 
  the approved plans of the construction plans from the agencies noted below. All submittals are required 
  to  include  the  lighting,  landscaping,  drainage,  and  development  plans.  All  site  improvements  are 
  prohibited prior to approval of the following agencies: 

a. The City Engineer shall approve the sewer hook‐ups. 
b. The  City  Engineer  shall  approve  the  drainage  and  grading  plans.  Central  District  Health 

Department recommends the plan be designed and constructed in conformance with standards 
contained  in,  “Catalog  for  Best Management  Practices  for  Idaho  Cities  and  Counties”.   No 
construction,  grading,  filling,  clearing  or  excavation  of  any  kind  shall  be  initiated  until  the 
applicant has received approval of the drainage plan.  

c. The Kuna Fire District shall approve fire flow requirements and/or building plans. Installation of 
fire protection facilities as required by Kuna Fire District is required. 

d. The  Boise‐Kuna  Irrigation  District  shall  approval  any modifications  to  the  existing  irrigation 
system. 

e. Approval from Ada County Highway District (ACHD) shall be obtained and Impact Fees must be 
paid prior to issuance of any building permit(s). 

2. All public rights‐of‐way shall be dedicated and constructed to standards of the City, Ada County Highway 
District and  Idaho Transportation Department. No public street construction may commence without the 
approval and permit from Ada County Highway District and/or Idaho Transportation Department. 
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2.1– With development and as necessary, dedicate right‐of‐way in sufficient amounts to follow City 
and ACHD standards and widths. 

3. Installation of service facilities shall comply with the requirements of the public utility or irrigation district 
providing the services. All utilities shall be installed underground, see KCC 6‐4‐2‐W. 

4. Compliance  with  Idaho  Code,  Section  §31‐3805  pertaining  to  irrigation  waters  is  required. 
Irrigation/drainage  waters  shall  not  be  impeded  by  any  construction  on  site.  Compliance  with  the 
requirements of the Boise Project Board of Control is required. 

5. When required, submit a petition to the City (as necessary, confirmed with the City engineer) consenting to 
the pooling of irrigation surface water rights for delivery purposes and request to annex the irrigation surface 
water rights appurtenant to the property over to the Kuna Municipal Pressure Irrigation system of the City 
(KMID). 

6. Street lights within the site shall be LED lighting and must comply with Kuna City Code and established Dark 
Skies practices. 

7. Parking within the site shall comply with Kuna City Code. (Unless specifically approved otherwise). 

8. Fencing within and around the site shall comply with Kuna City Code (Unless specifically approved otherwise 
and permitted). Perimeter fencing (and permit) is required prior to requesting final plat signatures from Kuna 
City Clerk and Engineer. 

9. All signage within/for the project shall comply with Kuna City Code. 

10. All  required  landscaping  shall be permanently maintained  in  a healthy  growing  condition.  The property 
owner shall remove and replace unhealthy or dead plant material within 3 days or as the planting season 
permits as required to meet the standards of these requirements. Maintenance and planting within public 
rights‐of‐way shall be with approval from the public entities owning the property. 

11. Applicant shall add the following notes to the landscape plans and resubmit a PDF for Planning and Zoning 
approved plans, bearing the changes. 
11.1 – Landscape contractor shall remove all twine/ropes and burlap from root balls. 
11.2 – Landscape contractor shall remove the wire basket from the top 1/2 of the root ball. 

12. The land owner/applicant/developer, and any future assigns having an interest in the subject property, shall 
fully comply with all conditions of development as approved by the City Council, or seek amending them 
through public hearing processes. 

13. Applicant shall follow staff, City engineers and other agency recommended requirements as applicable. 

14. Developer/owner/applicant shall comply with all local, state and federal laws. 
 
 

  DATED: This _____ day of _________, 2017. 

___________________________ 
Lee Young, Chairman 

Kuna Planning and Zoning Commission 
ATTEST: 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Troy Behunin, Planner III 
Kuna Planning and Zoning Department 
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City of Kuna 
 

P & Z Findings of Fact & Conclusions of Law 
 

 
  
 
 

 

To:      Planning and Zoning  
      Commission (P & Z) 
 

Case Numbers:  16‐12‐AN (Annexation) 
  Renascence Farms and 
  Mason Creek Farms 
 

Location:    Near the northwest and  
      northeast Corner of Ten  
      Mile and Lake Hazel  
      Roads, 
      Meridian, Idaho 83642 
 

Planner:     Troy Behunin,    
      Planner III 
 

Hearing Date:    February 14, 2017 
Findings of Fact:   February 28, 2017 
     
 

Engineer:    KM Engineering 
      Kirsti Grabo 
      9233 W. State St, 
      Boise, ID 83714 
      208.639.6930 
      KGrabo@kmengllp.com  
     

Owners (6):    1‐Renascence Farm, LLC  
        and 
      2‐Mason Creek Farm, LLC, 
          6152 W. Half Moon Ln.  
          Eagle, ID, 83616 
 
3‐Roy & Jeanne Spaulding    4‐Brent & Leslie Anderson      5‐Alan & Kathryn Colson      6‐Doug & Susan Roberts 
3975 W. Amity Rd.        3985 W. Amity Rd.                   5975 S. Ten Mile Rd.             6020 S. Ten Mile Rd. 
Meridian, ID 83642        Meridian, ID 83642             Meridian, ID 83642              Meridian, ID 83642 
 
Table of Contents: 

A. Process and Noticing       
B. Applicants Request 
C. Aerial map 
D. Site History 
E. General Project Facts 
F. Staff Analysis 
G. Applicable Standards 

H. Procedural Background 
I. Factual Summary 
J. Findings of Fact 
K. Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
L. Idaho Code Analysis 
M. Conclusions of Law 
N. Recommended Conditions of Approval 

 

          P.O. Box 13 
Phone: (208) 922-5274 
Fax:     (208) 922-5989 
www.Kunacity.id.gov 
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A. Process and Noticing: 

1. Kuna City Code (KCC), Title 1, Chapter 14, Section 3, states that annexations are designated as public hearings, 
with the P & Z Commission as a recommending body and City Council as the decision making body. These land 
use applications were given proper public notice and  followed  the  requirements  set  forth  in  Idaho Code, 
Chapter 65, Local Planning Act. 
 

a. Notifications 
i. Neighborhood Meeting    October 19, 2016 (13 persons attended) 

          January 4, 2017 (2 persons attended) 
ii. Agency Comment Request    December 15, 2016 
iii. 315’ Property Owners Notice  January 23, 2017 
iv. Kuna, Melba Newspaper    January  25, 2017 
v. Site Posted      February 3, 2017 

 

B. Applicant’s Request: 
On behalf of Renascence Farm, LLC, Mason Creek Farm, LLC, Melvin and Jeanne Spaulding, Brent and 
Leslie Anderson, Alan and Kathryn Colson and Doug and Susan Roberts, the applicant Kirsti Grabo with 
KM Engineering, requests approval to annex approximately 165 acres into Kuna City with an R‐6 (Medium 
Density Residential) zone. Approximately 139 acres of the application are located between Ten Mile and 
Black Cat Roads, south of Amity Road. Approximately 26 acres are located east of Ten Mile and north of 
Lake Hazel near the NEC of Ten Mile and Lake Hazel Roads. These  lands are not seeking development 
entitlements at this time. 
 

C. Aerial Map:  

                                  ©Copyrighted  
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D. Site History:  
These parcels are currently in the County, with varying historical uses, ranging from residential to farming. 
 

E. General Projects Facts:  
1. Comprehensive Plan Map: The Future Land Use Map (Comp Plan Map) is intended to serve as a guide for 

the decision making body for the City. The Comp Plan map indicates land use designations generally speaking, 
it is not the actual zone. In January of 2017, Kuna received approval for an Area of City Impact Boundary line 
(ACI) expansion by Ada County Board of County Commissioners. With that approval, the new ACI boundary 
has been extended to Lake Hazel Road. The Comprehensive Plan Map guides development for lands within 
the City  limits and  lands within  the ACI. This application  is  for  lands north of Lake Hazel and as such,  this 
project has no Comprehensive Plan Map designations for these lands. 
 

2. Recreation and Pathways Map: The Recreation and Pathways Master Plan Map  indicates a  future  trail 
through the NEC of the site, situated along the Mason Creek feeder among other water bodies in the area. 
Accordingly,  it  is  the City’s  goal  and desire  to  increase  the number of  trails  and pathways  in Kuna.  It  is 
necessary for each parcel to develop trails and pathways along frontages of their canals and ditches to comply 
with  the Master  Plan’s  goals  by  either  starting  a  pathway,  or  extending  one  in  that  area  at  time  of 
development. 

 
 
 

3. Surrounding Land Uses:           
North  RUT  Rural Urban Transition – Ada County

South  A  Agriculture – Kuna City

East  RR  Rural Residential – Ada County

West  C‐1  Neighborhood Commercial – Kuna City 

 
4. Parcel Sizes, Current Zoning, Parcel Numbers: 

Property Owner Parcel Size 
(Approximately) 

Current Zone: (RUT) 
Rural Urban Transition 

Parcel Number 

Mason Creek Farms, LLC 24.61 acres RUT – Ada County S1235347051 
Renascence Farms, LLC 14.96 acres RUT – Ada County S1234212935 
Renascence Farms, LLC 0.44 acres RUT – Ada County S1234212405 
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Renascence Farms, LLC 0.44 acres RUT – Ada County S1234121105 
Renascence Farms, LLC 0.20 acres RUT – Ada County R0967660151 
Renascence Farms, LLC 30.38 acres RUT – Ada County R0967660155 
Renascence Farms, LLC 57.12 acres RUT – Ada County R0967660156 
Renascence Farms, LLC 10 acres RUT – Ada County S1234142350 
Anderson, Brent & Leslie 2 acres RUT – Ada County S1234244200 
Spaulding, Melvin & Jeanne 2 acres RUT – Ada County S1234131300 
Colson, Alan & Kathryn 20.07 acres RUT – Ada County S1234417520 
Roberts, Doug & Susan 1 acre RUT – Ada County S1235336450 

 

5. Services: 
  Sanitary Sewer– City of Kuna (at time of development) 
  Potable Water – City of Kuna (at time of development) 
  Irrigation District – Boise‐Kuna Irrigation District, and the Nampa & Meridian Irrigation District 
  Pressurized Irrigation – City of Kuna (KMID) (at time of development) 
  Fire Protection – Kuna Rural Fire District 
  Police Protection – Kuna Police (Ada County Sheriff’s office) 
  Sanitation Services – J&M Sanitation 
 

6. Existing Structures, Vegetation and Natural Features:  
Approximately 154 acres of the land is being used for agricultural purposes. The remaining lands are being 
used as residential. Applicant anticipates that the land will continue the historic agricultural uses on the lands 
until development occurs. The current residences will remain as residential uses. 
 

7.   Transportation / Connectivity:  
The  applicant has not proposed  connection  to public  streets  at  this  time,  as  the  application  is  solely  for 
annexation into Kuna City limits.  At the time of future development, access points will need to follow design 
standards according to City and ACHD (Ada County Highway Dist.) codes in place at that time. Current legal 
points of access being used at this time by any of these land owners may remain until development requires 
a change. 
 

8. Environmental Issues:  
Staff is not aware of any environmental, health or safety conflicts. 

 
9. Agency Responses:  

The following agencies returned comments: City Engineer (Gordon Law, P.E.) Exhibit B 1, Ada County Highway 
District (Stacey Yarrington) Exhibits B 2 & 3, Boise Project Board of Control (Bob Carter) Exhibit B 4, Central 
Dist. Health Dept. (Lori Badigian), Exhibit B 5, COMPASS Idaho, (Carl Miller) Exhibit B 6, and Nampa & Meridian 
Irrigation Dist. (Greg Curtis), Exhibit B 7 which are included with this case file and are included with this report. 
 

F. Staff Analysis: 
  The  applicant  is  only  interested  in  annexation  of  the Renascence  Farms  and Mason  Creek  Farms  sites, 

however, in the future when development is desired, the project will be required to submit for subdivision 
and design review approvals and follow the public hearing process for that entitlement. 

 
  The properties are adjacent to Kuna City limits as demonstrated within Exhibit A 2 c. This project is adjacent 

to three principle arterials, Ten Mile, Amity and Lake Hazel Roads. All major public utilities are approximately 
700 feet south of Lake Hazel Road. Applicant has been made aware that development of the Renascence and 
Mason Creek  Farm parcels will  require  connection  to  city  services  and  require  connection  fees  for  that 
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purpose.  It  is  anticipated when  Renascence  Farms  and Mason  Creek  Farms  lands move  forward with 
development in the future, it will require a number of phases for complete build‐out. 

 
  Among the Category ‘A’ annexation requirements for annexing lands into the city, a land owner must submit 

an request for annexation. Furthermore, it requires that parcels must touch current city limits. The following 
land owners have submitted a “consent to annex” letter, which has been recorded with Ada County records 
and these consent letters are included as exhibits with this memo – See Exhibits C 5, C 6, C 7and C 8. 

   
 
 
   
   
 
 
   
 
   
   
 
  It  is  important to outline the annexation pathway relied upon  for this application. The Roberts’ property 

touches current city  limits. The Coulson property touches the Roberts’ property  (across Ten Mile Road –
public  Rights‐Of‐Way  do  not  block  a  touch).  The  Renascence  Farm,  LLC,  property  touches  the  Coulson 
property.  The  Anderson  and  Spaulding  properties  are  completely  surrounded  by  the  Renascence  Farm 
properties. The Mason Creek Farm property touches the City limits on its north and east side. The pathway 
is depicted on the map of page one of this memo. 

 
  These lands are north of Lake Hazel Road and Kuna’s recently approved ACI boundary. However, it is noted 

that Tim Eck (Renascence and Mason Creek Farms, LLC’s), met with the City of Meridian and notably, Mayor 
de Weerd, about this annexation request prior to application submittal. The City of Meridian has agreed to 
support the annexation of these properties (See Exhibit C 1). 

 
  Staff has reviewed Kuna’s Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan), and found that the Comp Plan encourages a 

variety of housing types for all income levels numerous times throughout the document. Pertinent sections 
of the Comp Plan that address housing types are included below, in Section K (Comp Plan Analysis) of this 
report. The City attempts to balance all housing types within the City. Staff will work with the applicant as 
future applications come forward for a preliminary plat to ensure technical compliance with Kuna City Code 
(KCC), as required. Staff would recommend that the applicant work with Kuna City, ACHD, and Kuna Rural 
Fire District (KRFD) to conform to each agency’s requirements. 

 
  Staff has determined this application complies with Title 5 of the Kuna City Code; Idaho Statute § 67‐6511; 

and the Kuna Comprehensive Plan document; and forwards a recommendation of approval for Case No’s 16‐
12‐AN, subject to any conditions of approval outlined by Kuna’s Commission and City Council. 

 

G. Applicable Standards: 
1. City of Kuna Zoning Ordinance Title 5, Chapter 13. 

2. City of Kuna Comprehensive Plan, adopted September 1, 2009. 

3. Idaho Code, Title 67, Chapter 65‐ the Local Land Use Planning Act. 
 

H. Procedural Background: 
On February 14, 2017, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the case, including the application, agency 
comments, staff’s memo, the application exhibits and public testimony presented or given. 
 

Exhibit C 5
Brent & Leslie Anderson   
 3985 W. Amity Rd. 
Meridian, ID 83642  
APN ‐ S1234244200 

Exhibit C 6
Alan & Kathryn Colson  
5975 S. Ten Mile Rd. 
Meridian, ID 83642 
APN ‐  S1234417520  

Exhibit C 7
Doug Roberts & Susan Hickman
6020 S. Ten Mile Rd. 
Meridian, ID 83642 
APN ‐  S1235336450  

Exhibit C 8
Jeanne & Melvin Spaulding 
3975 W. Amity Rd. 
Meridian, ID 83642 
APN ‐  S1234131300 
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I. Factual Summary: 
This parcels are located near the northeast and northwest corners of Ten Mile and Lake Hazel Roads. The project 
consists of 165 (approx.) acres that are adjacent to City limits and all parcels are currently zoned RUT (Rural Urban 
Transition – County). Applicant requests to annex the same parcels into Kuna City with the R‐6 (Medium Density 
Residential) zone for each parcel. All parcels in this application are adjacent to either Ten Mile Road, Lake Hazel 
Road or Amity Road; all roads are classified as principle arterials. 
 

J. Findings of Fact: 
Based upon the record contained in Case No. 16‐12‐AN, including the Comprehensive Plan, Kuna City Code, staff’s 
memorandums, including the exhibits, and the testimony during the public hearing, the Kuna Commission hereby 
recommends approval of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, and conditions of approval for Case No. 16‐
12‐AN, a request for annexation into Kuna City limits by the applicant follows: 
 
The Commission concludes that the applications comply with the City of Kuna’s Zoning regulations (Title 5) of KCC 
and/or the Subdivision regulations outlined in title 6 of KCC. 
 

1. The  Kuna  Commission  accepts  the  facts  as  outlined  in  the  staff memo,  the  public  testimony  and  the 
  supporting evidence list presented. 
 
  Comment: The Kuna Commission held a public hearing on the subject applications on February 14, 2017, to 
  hear from City staff, the applicant and to accept public testimony.  The decision by the Commission is based 
  on the application, staff report and public testimony, both oral and written. 
 
2. Based on the evidence contained in Case No. 16‐12‐AN, this proposal appears to generally comply with the 
  Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  Comment: The Comp Plan has listed numerous goals for providing single‐family and multi‐family housing in 
  Kuna. The Comp Plan describes this property as Medium Density. As this project proposes to accommodate 
  single‐family residential uses the project generally follows the goals of the Comp Plan. 

  
3. The Kuna Commission has the authority to recommend approval for this application. 
 
  Comment: On February 14, 2017, the Commission voted to recommend approval for case No. 16‐12‐AN. 
 

4. The public notice requirements were met and the public hearing was conducted within the guidelines of 
  applicable Idaho Code and City Ordinances. 
 
  Comment: As noted in the process and noticing sections, notice requirements were met to hold a public 
  hearing on February 14, 2017. 
 

K. City Commissions Comprehensive Plan Analysis: 
Commission determines the proposed annexation and zoning request for the site is consistent with the following 
Comp Plan components: 
 
Housing: 
Residents expressed interest in a mix of residential type dwellings applications; including a variety of housing. They 
were receptive to a greater mix of lot sizes and house price to appeal to a variety of people. A goal expressed by 
many was the preservation of large lots and rural cluster development in appropriate balance with a complement 
of other types of residential development (Page 21 Comprehensive Plan [CP]). 
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Comment:  The Comp Plan provides for a mix of residential uses.  This project has proposed a zone that provides 
an opportunity for a variety of densities, therefore it generally conforms to the Comp Plan goals and policies. 
 
Private Property Rights Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 2 ‐ Summary: 
Ensure the City land use policies, restrictions, conditions and fees do not violate private property rights and ensure 
that land use actions, decisions, and  regulations do not effectively eliminate all economic value of  the subject 
property. Ensure that City land use actions, decisions, and regulations do not prevent a private property owner 
from  taking advantage of a  fundamental property  right and staff shall evaluate with guidance  from  the City’s 
attorney; the Idaho Attorney General’s six criterion established to determine the potential for property taking.  
                           
Comment: Utilizing the Idaho Attorney General’s criteria, and a review by the City Attorney, the proposed project 
does not constitute a “takings” and the Economic value is intact. 
          
Economic Development Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 5 ‐ Summary:               
Promote and ensure an adequate supply of housing for all  income  levels and facilitate pedestrian connections, 
both visually and physically, to enhance pedestrian movement (Pg. 42 – 1.5 and Pg. 43 – 3.1 [CP]). 
 
Comment: The Comp Plan encourages an adequate mix of housing for all  income  levels and calls for increasing 
pedestrian connections. The requested zoning for this project provides an opportunity for a number of additional 
housing types to Kuna’s inventory and quality housing. At time of development, this project should be conditioned 
to add to the City’s pedestrian network for non‐motorized transportation, by proposing pathway connections for 
development to connect to in the future. 
 
Land Use Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 6 ‐ Summary: 
Adopt a future land use plan and map that includes natural and developed open spaces, while providing a variety 
of housing densities and  types  to accommodate various  lifestyles, ages and economic groups. Protect existing 
neighborhoods  and  ensure  new  development  is  sustainable  and  keeps  Kuna  desirable.  Develop  cohesive 
neighborhoods with character and quality while incorporating a variety of densities and styles (Pg. 64 – 3.1 & Goal 
3, and Pg. 65 – 4.3 [CP]). 
 
Comment: The requested zoning provides for quality housing opportunities and multiple housing varieties to the 
City’s inventory for all types of lifestyles, ages and economic groups. 
 
Housing Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 12 ‐ Summary: 
Encourage developers to provide high‐quality development with a variety of  lot sizes, dwelling types, densities 
and price points to meet the needs of current and future population while creating safe and aesthetically‐pleasing 
neighborhoods. Ensure housing is available throughout the community for all income levels and those with special 
needs. Encourage logical and orderly development while discouraging development of land divisions greater than 
one half acre because large lot subdivisions increase municipal costs, require public subsidy and create sprawl (Pg. 
155 – Obj. 1.1, Pg. 163 12.4 and Pg. 165 – 2.1 [CP]). 
 
Comment: With  the  requested zoning, applicant proposes a  future high quality development with a variety of 
dwelling types, densities, and price points for all income levels Kuna as encouraged by the Comp Plan. In the future, 
this project could significantly add to the City’s overall network of, utilities, sidewalks and roadways, therefore it 
complies with logical, orderly development and discourages land divisions and development greater than one half 
acre, and could avoid increased municipal services costs and sprawl. 
 
Community Design Goals and Objectives ‐ Section 13 ‐ Summary: 
Strengthen  Kuna’s  Image  through  good  community  and  urban  design  principles  that  create  well  planned 
neighborhoods. Foster good community design concepts that incorporate landscape features to serve as buffers 
between incompatible uses while reducing scale and creates a sense of place (Pg.167 – Goal 1 and Pg. 168 – 1.2 
and 2.1[CP]). 
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Comment: Applicant should be conditioned to offer good community and urban design principles through creation 
of greenspaces, add to the pedestrian pathway network and add to the City’s sidewalk network. At time of future 
development, applicant shall improve classified roadways, which add to the roadway system thereby complying 
with  the  adopted Master  Street  Plan  of  Kuna  (Functional  Classified Road Map). At  time  of  development,  the 
applicant should be conditioned to incorporate landscape buffers creating a sense of place for citizens. In the future, 
applicant should be conditioned to follow sound community design concepts and comply with the Comp Plan goals 
and help strengthen Kuna’s image. 

 

L. City Council’s Idaho State Code Analysis:  

 
1. IC §67‐6511 (2) C requires that the Commission analyze the proposed changes to zoning ordinances to ensure 

that they are not in conflict with the policies of the adopted comprehensive plan. If the request is found by 
the governing board to be in conflict with the adopted plan, or would result in demonstrable adverse impacts 
upon the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services, including school districts, 
within the planning jurisdiction. 
 

2. IC §67‐6513 provides that the City provide for mitigation of the effects of subdivision development on the 
ability of political subdivisions of the state, including school districts, to deliver services without compromising 
quality of service delivery to current residents or imposing substantial additional costs upon current residents 
to accommodate the proposed subdivision. 

 

3. Through discussions  and  comments  submitted  by public  service  providers,  the project would not  create 
demonstrable adverse  impact  to quality of emergency  service and/or delivery of  said  services, or  impose 
substantial additional costs to current residents. 

 

M. P & Z Commission’s Conclusions of Law: 
The public notice requirements have been met and the neighborhood meeting was conducted within the 
guidelines of applicable Idaho Code and City Ordinances. 

 
1. The Commission feels the site is physically suitable for development in the future. 

 
Comment: The 165 acre (approximate) proposal appears to be suitable for annexation, as proposed. 
 

2.  The zoning request is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or avoidable injury to wildlife or 
their habitat. 

 
Comment: The  land to be annexed  is not used as wildlife habitat. Roads, driveways, family units and open 
spaces are planned for construction according the City and ACHD requirements and best practices and will 
therefore not cause environmental damage or loss of habitat. 

 

3. The annexation application is not likely to cause adverse public health problems. 
 
  Comment: The annexation of the property would generally comply with the Comp Plan.  In the future, the  
  project would connect to public sewer and potable water systems, therefore eliminating the occurrence of 
  adverse public health problems.  
 

4. The application appears  to avoid detriment  to  the present and potential surrounding uses;  to  the health, 
  safety,  and  general welfare  of  the  public  taking  into  account  the  physical  features  of  the  site,  public 
  facilities and existing adjacent uses. 
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Comment: Through correspondence with public service providers and application evaluation, this annexation 
request appears to avoid detriment to surrounding uses.  Commission did consider the annexation and the 
location of the property with adjacent uses.  

 

5. The existing and proposed street and utility services  in proximity to the site are suitable or adequate for 
future residential purposes. 

 
  Comment: Correspondence from ACHD and Kuna Public Works confirms that the streets and utility services 
  are suitable and adequate for a future project. 
 

6. Based on  the evidence contained  in Case No. 16‐12‐AN, Commission  finds Case No. 16‐12‐AN adequately 
complies with Kuna City Code. 
 

7. Based  on  the  evidence  contained  in  Case No.  16‐12‐AN,  Commission  finds  Case No.  16‐12‐AN  generally 
complies with Kuna’s Zoning Code. 

 

N. Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
On February 14, 2017, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 3‐0, recommending conditional approval for 
Case No. 16‐12‐AN, based upon the facts outlined  in staff’s memo, the Comp Plan, Kuna City Code, the record 
before the Commission, the applicant’s presentation, public testimony and discussion at the at the February 14, 
2017, public hearing, and the Kuna Commission votes to recommend approval for Case No. 16‐12‐AN with the 
following conditions of approval at time of development in the future: 
 

‐ Applicant shall follow all conditions noted in the staff report, and applicable agency comments. 
‐ Applicant shall receive the R‐4 zone, as accepted by the applicant, for the properties west of Ten 

Mile, also known as the Renascence Farms properties (as outlined in the staff report). 
‐ The applicant shall work with staff during the preliminary plat and consider amenities,  including 

paths as discussed, especially along the proposed greenbelt area along Mason Creek. 
‐ Applicant shall provide transition lots nearest the Bitter Creek subdivision – Between 1.0 and .85 

acre in size. 
 

1. The applicant and/or owner  shall obtain written approval on  letterhead or may be written/stamped on 
  the approved plans of the construction plans from the agencies noted below. All submittals are required 
  to  include  the  lighting,  landscaping,  drainage,  and  development  plans.  All  site  improvements  are 
  prohibited prior to approval of the following agencies: 

a. The City Engineer shall approve the sewer hook‐ups. 
b. The  City  Engineer  shall  approve  the  drainage  and  grading  plans.  Central  District  Health 

Department recommends the plan be designed and constructed in conformance with standards 
contained  in,  “Catalog  for  Best Management  Practices  for  Idaho  Cities  and  Counties”.   No 
construction,  grading,  filling,  clearing  or  excavation  of  any  kind  shall  be  initiated  until  the 
applicant has received approval of the drainage plan.  

c. The Kuna Fire District shall approve fire flow requirements and/or building plans. Installation of 
fire protection facilities as required by Kuna Fire District is required. 

d. The  Boise‐Kuna  Irrigation  District  shall  approval  any modifications  to  the  existing  irrigation 
system. 

e. Approval from Ada County Highway District (ACHD) shall be obtained and Impact Fees must be 
paid prior to issuance of any building permit(s). 

2. All public rights‐of‐way shall be dedicated and constructed to standards of the City, Ada County Highway 
District and  Idaho Transportation Department. No public street construction may commence without the 
approval and permit from Ada County Highway District and/or Idaho Transportation Department. 
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2.1– With development and as necessary, dedicate right‐of‐way in sufficient amounts to follow City 
and ACHD standards and widths. 

3. Installation of service facilities shall comply with the requirements of the public utility or irrigation district 
providing the services. All utilities shall be installed underground, see KCC 6‐4‐2‐W. 

4. Compliance  with  Idaho  Code,  Section  §31‐3805  pertaining  to  irrigation  waters  is  required. 
Irrigation/drainage  waters  shall  not  be  impeded  by  any  construction  on  site.  Compliance  with  the 
requirements of the Boise Project Board of Control is required. 

5. When required, submit a petition to the City (as necessary, confirmed with the City engineer) consenting to 
the pooling of irrigation surface water rights for delivery purposes and request to annex the irrigation surface 
water rights appurtenant to the property over to the Kuna Municipal Pressure Irrigation system of the City 
(KMID). 

6. Street lights and parking lights for the site shall be LED lighting and must comply with Kuna City Code and 
established Dark Skies practices. 

7. Parking within the site shall comply with Kuna City Code. (Unless specifically approved otherwise). 

8. Fencing within and around the site shall comply with Kuna City Code (Unless specifically approved otherwise 
and permitted). Perimeter fencing (and permit) is required prior to requesting final plat signatures from Kuna 
City Clerk and Engineer. 

9. All signage within/for the project shall comply with Kuna City Code and shall be approved in the design review 
process with all new commercial and multi‐family. 

10. All  required  landscaping  shall be permanently maintained  in  a healthy  growing  condition.  The property 
owner shall remove and replace unhealthy or dead plant material within 3 days or as the planting season 
permits as required to meet the standards of these requirements. Maintenance and planting within public 
rights‐of‐way shall be with approval from the public entities owning the property. 

11. The land owner/applicant/developer, and any future assigns having an interest in the subject property, shall 
fully comply with all conditions of development as approved by the City Council, or seek amending them 
through public hearing processes. 

12. Applicant shall follow staff, City engineers and other agency recommended requirements as applicable. 

13. Developer/owner/applicant shall comply with all local, state and federal laws. 
 
 

  DATED: This _____ day of _________, 2017. 
 

___________________________ 
Lee Young, Chairman 

Kuna Planning and Zoning Commission 
ATTEST: 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Troy Behunin, Planner III 
Kuna Planning and Zoning Department 
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City of Kuna 
  

 
              Design Review Staff Memo 
 

 
To:      Planning and Zoning Commission; 
      acting as Design Review Committee 
 
Case Numbers:     17‐01‐DR (Design Review)  
      and 17‐03‐SN (Sign) Bi‐mart 
      within Ridley’s Family  
      Center Subdivision No. 2  
      (Forthcoming). 
 
Location:    South West Corner (SWC) of 
      Deer Flat Road – West of  
      Ridley’s Market & Ace  
      Hardware 
 
Planner:     Troy Behunin, Planner III 

 
Meeting Date:    February 28, 2017 
 
Owner:      Bi‐Mart Corporation 
      Jon Scanlan 
      220 Seneca Road 
      Eugene, OR  97402 
      541.344.0681 
   Jon.scanlan@bimart.com  
 
Representative:    SSW Engineers 
      Becky Wiltse  
      2350 Oakmont Way, Ste. 105 
      Eugene, OR 97401 
      541.485.8383 
   beckyw@sswengineers.com  
 
Table of Contents: 

A. Course Proceedings 
B. Applicant Request 
C. Aerial Maps 
D. History 
E. General Project Facts 
F. Staff Analysis 
G. Applicable Standards 
H. Proposed Decision by the Commission 

 
A. Course of Proceedings: 

1. According to Kuna City Code (KCC) Title 5, Chapter 4, Section 2 (Design Review) and Title 5, Chapter 10 (Signs) 
Section 4‐G‐10; all new commercial buildings, landscaping, parking lots and signage are required to submit 
an application  for  review by  the Design Review Committee  (DRC). As a public meeting  item,  this action 
requires no formal public noticing actions. 
 
 

  P.O. Box 13 
  Kuna, ID 83634 

Phone: (208) 922-5274 
Fax:     (208) 922-5989 
www.Kunacity.Id.gov 
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a. Notifications 
i. Agenda        February 28, 2017 

 
2. In  accordance with  KCC  5‐4‐2  and  KCC  5‐10‐4‐G‐10,  these  applications  seek DRC  approval  for  building, 

landscaping, parking lot design and street light location approval for a new Bi‐mart store with accompanying 
store signage in Kuna. 
 

B. Applicant Request: 
1. Applicant requests approval from the Planning and Zoning Commission (acting as Design Review Committee) 

for a new 32,000 square foot commercial building to house a new Bi‐mart store, accompanying landscaping, 
parking lot, and signage within the future Ridley’s Family Center  No. 2, Commercial subdivision. 
 

C. Aerial Map: 

       
                                           ©COPYRIGHTED 

D. History: 
The property is in the City limits and is zoned C‐1 (Neighborhood Commercial District). This parcel has historically 
been farmed. 

 
E. General Project Facts: This parcel is just west of the Ridley’s and Ace stores – Kuna, Idaho. The new Bi‐mart store 

will  be  approximately  32,000  square  feet  in  size  and will  have  accompanying  landscaping,  parking  lot  and 
accompanying signage. 
 

1. Comprehensive  Plan  Designation:  The  Comprehensive  Plan  Map  (CPM)  identifies  this  site  as 
Neighborhood Commercial District.  Staff views this request to be consistent with the approved CPM map. 
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             Legend 
 

2. Surrounding Land Uses:           
North  RUT  Rural Urban Transition – Ada County

South  R‐6  Medium Density Residential – Kuna City

East  C‐1  Neighborhood Dist. Commercial– Kuna City

West  RUT  Rural Urban Transition – Ada County

 
3. Parcel Sizes, Current Zoning, Parcel Numbers: 

 Approximately 2.97 acres (129,373 +/‐ SF) 

 C‐1, Neighborhood Commercial 

 Parcel No. S1324110090 (until Commercial Subdivision Records)     
   

4. Services: 
  Sanitary Sewer– City of Kuna 
  Potable Water – City of Kuna 
  Irrigation District – Boise‐Kuna Irrigation District 
  Pressurized Irrigation – City of Kuna (KMID) 
  Fire Protection – Kuna Fire District 
  Police Protection – Kuna City Police (Ada County Sheriff’s office) 
  Sanitation Services – J&M Sanitation 
 

5. Existing Structures, Vegetation and Natural Features: The property has no existing buildings and has 
vegetation associated with a farm field, and at least one tree that will be removed due to its poor condition. 
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6.   Transportation / Connectivity: Approved driveway access ingress/egress from N. Abstein Lane, north of 
Ridley’s, and E. Profile Lane, south of McDonalds. Ridley’s Family Center No. 2 (by others) will propose and 
improve a new road west of this site, establishing a new segment of the existing Sailer Place. It will be built 
with full improvements to Kuna city and ACHD standards. 

 
7. Environmental Issues: Staff is not aware of any environmental issues, health or safety conflicts. This site’s 

topography is generally flat, and contains a known drain ditch in the south part of the site to be engineered 
under the direction of the City Engineer during the civil construction plan review approval process. 
 

F. Staff Analysis: 
Staff  has  reviewed  the  application  and  finds  that  the  proposed  building,  landscaping,  parking  lot  and 
proposed signage generally satisfies the  intent of Kuna’s Codes and fits  into the overall vision of the C‐1 
District and generally conforms to the ‘Kuna Architecture’ guidelines and parking standards. 
 
Staff has worked with the applicant to modify the appearance of the building to bring it into conformance 
with established Kuna Architecture design standards. Staff finds that the proposed new commercial building 
for Bi‐mart  is  in general  conformance with  the Design Review Ordinance  (Kuna City Code  [KCC] Title 5, 
Chapter 4). 
 
The applicant has proposed 139 parking spaces (10’ X 20’) and staff finds the parking  lot  is  in substantial 
conformance with KCC Title 5 Chapter 9. Staff notes the applicants’ street light plan appears to conform to 
the city’s LED standards. Staff notes that HVAC equipment is only partially visible at 100’ from the building 
(as noted on the elevations sheet) and appears to follow the spirit and intent of the design review overlay 
district  for mechanical  concealment.  Trash  enclosures  have  been  provided  in  the  rear  and may  need 
adjustment to their orientation to meet the needs of J & M Sanitation for servicing. Staff recommends that 
applicant be conditioned to work with J & M sanitation to meet their requirements. 
 
Staff finds the proposed landscaping to be in substantial conformance with KCC Title 5 chapter 17, Kuna’s 
Landscaping Ordinance. Gravel is not an acceptable ground cover in the C‐1 zone and should be avoided for 
planter beds. Applicant has stated that a landscape buffer for the west side of the site (along future Sailer 
Place)  will  be  planted  by  others.  Landscaping  will  be  required  to  be  installed  in  connection  with  the 
forthcoming final plat for Ridley’s Family Center No. 2 Sub.  
 
Proposed wall signs (and other signage) require design review application and accompany this application. 
Staff  finds  that  all  signage  is  in  substantial  conformance  with  KCC  5‐10‐4‐G  and  Q.  However,  staff 
recommends that the proposed pole sign be constructed in such a way to allow for future businesses to add 
their signs  to  the monument. Staff desires  to avoid visual clutter and sight pollution and distractions  for 
motorists maintaining  the  intent  and  spirit  of  the  design  review  overlay  district  objectives  and  goals. 
Additional businesses will locate to the area and staff desires to avoid a pole sign for each parcel in the future 
maintain those goals.  
 
Applicant  is hereby notified  that  this project  is  subject  to design  review  inspections  and  fees. Required 
inspections  (post  construction),  are  to  verify  building,  parking  lot,  street  light,  landscaping  and  signage 
compliance, prior to issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the building.  
 
If  the  recommended  changes/coordination  with  regard  to  the  trash  enclosures  and  pole  sign  are 
conditioned,  staff  views  the  proposed  new  commercial  building,  landscaping,  parking  lot,  street  light 
locations and signage to be generally consistent with the goals and vision of the overlay district for Kuna city. 
Staff forwards a recommendation of approval for case No.s 17‐01‐DRC and 17‐03‐SN to the Design Review 
Committee.  

 
G. Applicable Standards: 

1. City of Kuna Zoning Ordinance No. 230. 
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2. City of Kuna Design Review Ordinance, 2011‐08. 
3. City of Kuna Comprehensive Plan. 
4. City of Kuna Overlay District Ordinance, 2011‐06 
5. City of Kuna Landscaping Ordinance, 2012‐22 
6. City of Kuna Parking Lot Ordinance, 2011‐12 

 

H. Proposed Decision by the Commission: 
Note: This proposed motion is for approval or denial of this request. However, if the Design Review Committee 
wishes to approve or deny specific parts of the requests as detailed in the report, those changes must be specified. 
 
Based on the facts outlined in staff’s report, the case file and discussion at the public meeting, the Design Review 
Committee of Kuna, Idaho, hereby (approves/denies) a Design Review request (Case No. 17‐01‐DRC and 17‐03‐
SN),  by  Becky Wiltse  with  SSW  Engineers  (on  behalf  of  Bi‐mart  Corporation),  with/without  the  following 
conditions of approval: 
 

Conditions of Approval: 
1. Signage for the site shall comply with current Kuna City Code and obtain a sign permit prior to construction. 
2. Lighting within the site shall comply with the Kuna City Code and all LED standards. 
3. Landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy condition. Applicant shall replace dead/dying or landscaping 

in extreme conditions, within 3 weeks, seasons permitting. 
4. Staff recommends that applicant be conditioned to work with J & M sanitation to meet their requirements. 
5. Staff recommends that the proposed pole sign be constructed in such a way to allow for other businesses 

to add their signs to the pole. 
6. The applicant shall follow all staff and agency recommendations. 
7. The applicant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws. 

 

DATED: This 28th day of February, 2017. 

                ______________________________ 
Lee Young, Chairman 

Kuna Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________ 
Troy Behunin, Planner III 
Kuna Planning and Zoning Department 
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January 18, 2017 
 
City of Kuna 
Design Review Committee 
P.O. Box 13 
Kuna, ID 83634 
 
 
 
RE: Detail letter of explanation for project  
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
 
 
SSW Engineers, Inc. and Bi-mart Corporation are submitting the enclosed design review submittal, application, and 
other supporting documents and materials in order to gain approval by the design review committee to proceed with 
civil and building permits for a 32,000 square foot Bi-mart retail store within the Ridley’s Family Center Subdivision 
No. 2 lot 15.  
 
Per the design review application, we are asked to explain or justify how the project meets the design review 
standards. Below is a list of code references and how our site or building meets the intent of the code.  
 
5-4-6 A. 1. Site Design Objectives: 
SSW and Bi-mart believe that our site plan meets all of the site design objectives with respect to the impacting traffic 
on adjacent streets, providing safe pedestrian access to the retail store and functional safe vehicle parking lot. Please 
see sheets C1.0 for the site plan, parking layout, sidewalks and building location within the site.  
 
5-4-6 A. 2. Site Landscaping: 
CSHQA designed the site landscaping to include all the new plantings, irrigation and screening of the areas that 
would be deemed unsightly. Please see sheet L1.0 for site landscaping plan.  
 
5-4-6 A. 3. Site Grading and Drainage: 
SSW designed the site grading and drainage to keep all of the storm water created on lot 15 within lot 15’s boundary. 
The proposed design for the stormwater treatment is to utilized seepage beds and subsurface storage beds due to the 
soil types within the site. Please see sheets C4.0 and C5.0 for stormwater plan and grading plan.  
 
5-4-6 A. 4. Utilities: 
SSW designed the utilities to service the building all underground which includes, water, wastewater, fire line, 
electrical, gas, cable and telephone. The water, wastewater, gas, and fire line will enter the northeast corner of the 
building with the gas meter installed on the north side of the north east corner. The gas meter will be painted to match 
the body of the building at that location as to not draw the attention of the public. The stand-by generator is located at 
the rear of the building and is screened by a six foot tall CMU wall. At this point in time, electrical service has not yet 
been designed to reach lot 15, therefore location of the underground electrical line cannot be set yet. The mechanical 
units will be located on the roof and nearly all of the units will be screened by the parapets on the building when 
standing one hundred feet away from the building.  
 
5-4-6 A. 5. Building Design: 
SSW designed the exterior building material to be consistent with the current adjacent building (Merrell Town Center) 
of CMU. The ratio between height and width of the building are similar designs to the Merrell Town Center. Due to 
Bi-mart being a membership store, they have one main entrance and one main exit (beyond the fire exits required by 
the building code) in order to allow only members to enter the store which is covered by a vestibule type roof system 
with columns out in front. In addition to the large vestibule style roof system, the front of the building offers relief 
with cable tensioned awnings on either side of the vestibule roof.  

2350 Oakmont Way, Suite 105 
 Eugene, OR  97401 

(541) 485-8383  Fax (541) 485-8384 
www.sswengineers.com 
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5-4-6 B. Architectural Requirements: 
The exterior of the retail store will offer the following surfaces: smooth CMU, scored CMU, split face CMU, rock 
veneer, and stucco. The building’s roof will be a white single-ply roof that will be completely screened by parapets 
around the building and the vestibule style roof will be a green metal roof. At this time, there are no fences in the 
design of the project, but the stand-by generator and trash bins are in separate CMU wall enclosures. The front of the 
building and the west side, also known as the garden center, will be concrete with saw cut joints. The building main 
body color will be an off-white color known as Wool Skein with Nuthatch and green accent colors for all cornice, 
flashing, and visible roofing. Please see drawing A2.0A for color renditions along with the paint samples.  
 
5-4-6 C. Requirements of the commercial, public arterial roadway districts: 
The site is designed to be a retail store which follows the projected design for the entire property as being a retail 
center having pedestrian connectivity between the lots to the north and Bi-mart by utilizing a sidewalk down the 
middle of the parking area. The building is facing north toward Deer Flat Road and meets the height restriction of less 
than sixty feet tall. The exterior of the building is intended to be anti-glare and appealing to the eye in most lights. As 
mentioned in the paragraphs above, the entrance is clearly defined by the vestibule style roof. The building features a 
variety of wall reliefs including pilasters, canopies, cornices, and accent painting and changes of materials, and meets 
the code with having parapets around the entire main building with a sloping front vestibule style roof which also 
meets the façade wall plane projection code along with the pilasters and truck dock projections. Due to security and 
possible theft from the store, Bi-mart installs the absolute minimum windows in their stores which includes two store 
front doors and one pharmacy window.  
 
5-4-6 F. Commercial (C-1, C-2, C-3 zoning districts) 
The parking lot was designed diligently to meet Kuna’s parking regulations and landscaping code by utilizing nine 
foot by twenty foot parking stalls with less than twelve contiguous spaces therefore only painting a single line 
delineating parking spaces. Based on code 5-9-3, retail stores are required to have one parking space for every two 
hundred fifty square feet of floor area; Bi-mart’s building is required to have one hundred thirty nine parking spaces 
with five ADA parking spaces. The proposed site plan shows one hundred forty nine spaces with six ADA parking 
spaces. The entire property is covered with cross-access easements which allows for shared parking for all tenants 
within the property.  
 
In conclusion, we strived to interpret and meet all the applicable portions of the Kuna Design Review Code with the 
parking lot layout, revising the exterior of the building, and meeting the trash and stand-by generator enclosure codes.  
 
 
Thank you,  
 

 
 
 
 

 
Becky Wiltse 
Project Manager  







 
FILE NO.: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CROSS REF.______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
FILES:_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
The City of Kuna has adopted a Design Review process whose purpose is to make Kuna a pleasant and 
comfortable place to live and work.  This Design Review process is based on standards and guidelines 
found in the Design Review Ordinance No. 2007-02 and the Architecture and Site Design Booklet. Both 
of these documents can be found online (www.cityofkuna.com) or are picked up in the City’s Planning 
and zoning department is located at 763 W Avalon, Kuna ID.  Staff is glad to assist you with your 
application form.  
The Design Review application applies to the following land use actions: 
 

Multi- family dwellings (3 or more)  
Commercial   
Industrial  
Institutional 

  
  

  
Proposed Conversions 
Proposed changes in land use and/or building use or exterior remodeling   
Exterior restoration, and enlargement or expansion of existing buildings, signs or sites. 

 
Application Submittal Requirements

Applicant 
Use 

 Staff 
Use 

 
Note: Pre-Applications are valid for a period of three (3) months. 

 

 
Note: It is the applicant’s responsibility to use a current application.

 

  

  

  

 original  

City of Kuna
Design Review

Application

G0.1

G0.2

letter enclosed

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

N/A per Troy B.



 (No smaller than 1”=30’, unless 
otherwise approved.) 
One of each plan

(1) 24” X 36” TO SCALE COPIES
(1) 11” X 17” REDUCTIONS
(1) 8 ½” x 11” REDUCTIONS 

 

 

Note: Provide photo of the colored rendering and material samples board to City Staff electronically 
in a JPG or PDF format.

 

 
The Applicant is obligated to provide a site plan that graphically portrays the site and includes the following 

features: 
 

Site Plan
Applicant 

Use 
 Staff  

Use 

(a separate sign application must be submitted with this 
application)

(Note: all buffers must be 
located outside the public right-of-way)

(if applicable)  

 

Record Survey by Fox Land Surveying
G0.0

Topo
Survey

N/A

Record Survey
& C4.0C1.0

C1.0 &C5.0

C1.0, A2.0 & A2.0A

C1.0, C5.0
N/A

L1.0

C1.0 & L1.0
C1.0 & Record Survey

C1.0 & L1.0

N/A
C1.0 S1.0 & S1.2

C1.0 C5.0 & L1.0

Record Survey

C4.0

C3.0

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



Landscape and Streetscape Plan
The landscape and streetscape plans need to be drawn by the project architect, professional landscape 
architect, landscape designer, or qualified nurseryman for development’s possessing more than twelve 
thousand (12,000) square feet of private land.  The landscaped and streetscape plans must be colored. 
The Planning Director or City Forester may require the preparation of a landscape plan for smaller 
developments by one of the noted individuals if the lot(s) have unique attributes.  

Applicant 
Use 

 Staff  
Use 

Please review the City’s plant list and rely upon it to identify the site’s planting 
strategy. Include botanical and common name, quantity, spacing and sizes of 
all proposed landscape materials at the time of planting, and at maturity. A list 
of acceptable trees is available upon request from City Planning Staff. If there 
are any questions, please contact the City Forester, Natalie Reeder, at 
208.880.0953

Note: All plant materials, except existing native plants not damaged during 
construction or xeriscape species shown not to require regular watering, shall be 
irrigated by underground sprinkler systems set on a timer in order to obtain 
proper watering duration and ease of maintenance. 

(benches, etc.), etc. 

Note: A separate sign application must be submitted with this application

G0.0

L1.0

L1.0

L1.0

N/A

L1.0

L1.0
L1.0

Record Survey

C4.0 & C5.0

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔
✔

✔
✔
✔
✔
✔



Building Elevations
Applicant 

Use 
 Staff  

Use 

Note: Four (4) elevations to include all sides of development and must be in 
color

Note: Submit as 11”x17” reductions

Lighting Plan
Applicant 

Use 
 Staff  

Use 

Note: The City encourages use of “dark sky” lighting fixtures

Roof Plans
Applicant 

Use 
 Staff  

Use 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A2.0 & A2.0A

A2.0 & A2.0A

S1.2 & Cut sheets

A3.0

A2.0 & A2.0A

ELECTRICAL PLAN & SUBMITTAL

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



Design Review Application 
 

� �

(if different from above)

 
 

Please check the box that reflects the intent of the application
 
� BUILDING DESIGN REVIEW     � DESIGN REVIEW MODIFICATION
� SUBDIVISION / COMMON AREA LANDSCAPE   � STAFF LEVEL APPLICATION
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bi-mart Corporation: Jon Scanlan 541-344-0681

Jon.Scanlan@bimart.com

P.O. Box 2310

Eugene, OR 97402

Bi-mart Corporation 541-344-0681

P.O. Box 2310 Jon.Scanlan@bimart.com

Eugene, OR 97402

SSW Engineers: Becky Wiltse 541-485-8383

2350 Oakmont Way Suite 105 beckyw@sswengineers.com

Eugene, OR 97404

✔



This Design Review application is a request to construct, add or change the following: (Briefly explain the nature of 
the request.)

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: The maximum building height for each zoning district is as follows:

 
 (Note: This section must be completed in compliance with the City of Kuna 

Ordinance No. 2007-21A (as amended); found online at (www.cityofkuna.com) under the City Code.

MATERIAL COLOR

(Exterior Insulation Finish System)

(Type of window frames & styles / doors & styles, material)

This request is to design and build a Bi-mart Retail store in Kuna, ID

Proposed Commercial/Retail

Agriculture
Commercial
Agriculture
Commercial

No
N/A

One, retail store

30'-0" 2 stories

25.6%

TPO White

00

0 0
67.4% Smooth & 11.2% Scored Wool Skein & Forest Green

10.0% Split-face CMU Nuthatch
1.7% Wool Skein

2.0%Cornice Forest Green

Storefront Doors & Metal Doors Storefront: All glass & Metal: painted same color as building

4.0% Metal Forest Green
Metal Forest Green



 

 (size, location, screening & construction materials)

 

 (Please provide information about new fencing material as well as any exiting fencing material)

(Please  note that the City has height limitations of fencing material and requires a fence permit to be obtained prior to installation)

 

 

(Including landscaped rights-of-way)

(Paving, driveways, walkways, etc.)

 (Please provide the information on the site plans.)

(The City’s goal is to preserve existing tree with greater than a four inch (4”) 
caliper whenever possible):

 

 (bike racks, receptacles, drinking fountains, benches, etc.)

 

2'-0" of landscape in ROW (excluding sidewalk), 15'-0" landscape setback from ROW. 

(P

location is behind the store adjacent to the truck dock. The layout is to conform with City of Kuna code and materials are 
CMU walls with metal doors for durability. 

Please see S1.2 & attached Submittal for HVAC units as there are several different units

Please see S1.2 & attached Submittal for HVAC units as there are several different units
The mechanical units are located on the roof of the building and nearly completely screened by the parapet. (See color elevations)

Please see C1.0, A2.0 & A2.0A,

No, all ditches are tiled.

Fencing is not proposed a this time.

Proposal to utilize sheet drainage and catch basins drain to either an 1100 sq. ft. seepage bed, 2000 sq. ft. seepage bed or a 2000 sq. ft. subsurface detention area.

25.6%

12.4% 16,042

62% 80,221

6.4%

Yes, one 6" tree is existing within the property boundary. The 6" tree is found to be in poor condition and
proposed to be be removed and replaced with other trees within parking landscape islands.

One truck dock with two lanes and doors into building.

Landscaping & the dock is in the rear of the building.

which will accommodate 10 bicycles, there are 2 drinking fountains inside the store, and public restrooms
inside the store.

There are 5 bike racks shown on the plans





30'-0" 5'-0" 150'-0"



8'-0" 2'-0" 150'-0"

1
6'-0"18'-6"

3

4

111'-0"





















4.64.74.74.54.44.43.93.42.92.52.21.81.61.41.21.11.00.90.80.80.70.60.60.50.50.40.40.40.40.40.30.40.40.40.40.50.50.50.60.60.70.70.80.91.01.11.21.31.51.61.61.41.31.41.71.21.71.61.41.2

8.48.78.78.27.66.85.94.94.03.42.82.31.91.71.51.31.11.01.00.90.80.80.70.60.60.50.50.50.40.40.40.40.40.50.50.50.60.60.70.80.80.91.11.21.41.61.92.32.73.13.74.34.85.05.25.45.35.24.94.6

2.12.12.32.42.62.93.33.84.55.46.57.78.89.710.510.810.810.29.48.47.26.04.94.03.32.82.32.01.71.51.41.31.21.11.00.90.80.70.70.60.60.50.50.50.50.50.50.50.60.60.70.70.80.91.01.11.31.51.72.02.42.93.54.25.26.27.17.98.58.88.78.37.66.8

2.72.82.92.93.13.33.74.24.95.86.77.88.79.510.010.410.39.99.28.47.36.25.34.43.73.22.72.32.01.81.61.51.41.21.11.11.00.90.80.70.70.70.60.60.60.60.60.60.70.70.80.80.91.11.21.31.51.82.02.42.83.44.15.06.17.38.49.410.110.410.39.89.08.0

3.63.73.73.73.73.84.14.65.26.06.87.78.59.19.59.99.89.48.98.27.36.45.54.74.03.43.02.62.32.11.91.81.61.51.31.21.21.11.00.90.90.80.80.70.70.70.70.80.80.90.91.01.11.31.41.61.72.02.32.63.13.74.45.26.27.28.18.99.49.79.69.28.67.7

5.05.15.04.84.64.54.65.05.56.26.97.58.08.69.19.49.38.98.37.87.26.45.74.94.33.73.32.92.72.42.32.11.91.81.61.51.41.31.31.21.11.11.01.01.01.01.01.01.01.11.11.21.31.51.61.71.92.12.42.73.23.84.55.36.16.97.68.28.79.08.98.58.07.3

7.47.67.26.65.95.35.25.45.76.26.67.07.37.78.08.28.17.97.57.16.76.35.75.14.54.03.63.33.02.82.62.52.32.22.02.01.91.81.71.71.61.61.51.41.41.31.31.31.31.41.41.51.61.71.81.92.12.22.52.83.23.74.45.15.76.36.87.47.88.08.07.67.16.5

10.911.510.69.17.56.35.85.75.96.16.46.66.76.97.27.37.37.06.86.66.36.05.65.24.74.33.93.63.43.23.02.92.82.62.62.52.42.42.32.32.32.22.12.02.01.91.81.81.71.71.71.81.81.92.02.12.22.42.62.83.23.64.14.65.05.35.65.86.16.26.25.95.75.3

16.817.615.712.69.67.56.56.16.16.36.46.56.66.76.97.06.96.86.66.46.36.05.75.34.94.64.24.03.83.63.53.43.33.23.13.13.13.03.13.13.13.02.92.82.62.52.42.32.22.22.12.12.12.12.22.22.32.42.62.83.03.33.63.94.24.34.44.54.64.74.74.54.34.2

23.424.221.216.211.68.57.16.56.46.46.56.66.76.97.17.17.16.96.76.56.36.15.85.45.14.74.44.24.03.93.83.83.83.73.73.83.83.83.83.93.93.83.73.53.43.23.12.92.82.62.52.42.42.32.32.42.42.42.52.62.83.03.23.43.53.63.63.63.73.73.73.63.53.4

27.524.618.212.79.07.36.76.56.56.66.66.76.97.17.17.16.96.76.56.36.15.85.45.04.74.54.34.14.14.04.14.24.34.44.54.54.54.64.64.64.64.44.34.14.03.83.63.33.12.92.72.62.52.42.42.32.32.32.42.52.62.72.82.82.92.92.93.03.03.02.92.82.7

26.627.223.817.912.69.07.46.86.66.76.76.97.17.37.57.67.57.37.06.76.56.15.85.45.04.64.44.24.14.14.14.34.44.74.95.15.25.35.35.55.65.55.35.14.94.74.44.13.83.43.12.82.62.52.42.32.22.22.12.12.12.12.12.22.22.22.22.22.22.32.22.22.12.0

22.022.620.115.711.68.67.36.86.87.07.37.57.98.38.68.88.68.37.87.47.06.55.95.44.94.54.34.14.04.04.24.44.75.05.45.86.16.46.76.97.17.16.86.56.05.75.34.84.33.83.32.92.62.42.32.22.12.01.91.81.81.71.71.61.61.61.61.61.61.61.61.51.51.4

17.418.016.213.410.58.27.06.76.97.37.88.38.99.610.210.310.19.58.88.27.56.76.05.34.84.44.24.14.04.04.24.44.85.35.96.57.17.68.28.88.88.88.88.27.46.86.15.44.63.93.42.92.62.42.22.11.91.81.71.61.51.41.31.21.21.11.11.01.01.01.01.00.90.9

15.816.314.912.610.18.07.06.66.87.38.08.89.610.410.710.710.710.39.68.77.86.86.05.34.84.54.24.14.14.14.24.54.95.46.16.97.88.69.39.910.210.010.09.28.47.56.65.64.74.03.43.02.62.42.22.01.81.71.51.41.31.21.00.90.90.80.70.70.70.60.60.60.60.6

17.918.616.813.710.68.37.26.86.97.38.19.210.211.111.711.411.711.110.29.17.86.96.25.65.14.64.44.24.24.34.44.75.15.66.27.08.19.110.110.810.810.610.810.19.17.96.75.74.94.23.63.12.72.42.22.01.81.61.41.31.11.00.90.80.70.60.60.50.50.40.40.40.40.4

22.723.420.816.111.98.97.67.27.58.19.09.710.811.712.512.112.511.710.79.68.87.86.86.05.45.04.74.54.54.54.75.05.46.06.87.68.49.610.711.712.011.711.810.89.68.27.26.25.34.53.93.32.92.52.22.01.81.61.41.21.10.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.40.30.30.30.3

26.827.524.118.012.89.37.97.68.08.910.111.512.613.414.19.014.113.412.611.410.08.57.46.55.75.24.84.64.64.64.95.25.86.57.58.610.011.211.812.512.912.512.511.911.09.98.47.05.94.94.13.53.02.62.22.01.71.51.31.21.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.30.30.30.30.3

26.827.423.917.812.59.17.77.57.98.79.911.312.213.013.510.413.513.012.211.29.88.47.36.45.75.24.84.64.64.74.95.35.96.77.79.010.511.812.913.714.314.413.812.911.910.48.87.36.15.04.23.53.02.62.21.91.71.51.31.21.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.30.30.30.30.2

22.022.719.915.211.08.27.06.87.17.88.69.410.611.612.412.112.411.710.69.48.57.66.75.95.44.94.64.54.44.54.75.15.66.27.18.29.310.011.011.712.311.711.810.99.99.07.96.65.64.73.93.32.92.52.11.91.61.51.31.21.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.30.30.30.30.3

15.415.914.311.58.87.06.26.16.46.97.88.910.010.911.211.311.310.910.09.07.86.86.15.55.04.64.34.24.24.24.44.75.25.76.37.18.19.310.411.211.411.011.310.49.38.06.75.85.04.23.63.12.62.32.01.81.61.41.31.11.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.30.30.30.30.3

9.910.29.48.16.85.85.45.56.06.87.68.49.310.010.610.710.710.19.38.57.66.75.95.24.74.34.03.93.94.04.14.44.85.36.06.97.98.89.710.310.410.010.49.78.77.76.65.64.73.93.32.82.52.21.91.71.51.41.21.11.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.40.30.30.30.3

6.36.56.35.85.24.94.85.25.76.47.07.78.39.19.69.79.69.18.47.87.26.45.75.04.54.13.93.83.83.84.04.24.65.25.96.77.48.18.79.49.69.69.58.77.97.26.35.44.63.83.22.72.42.11.91.71.51.31.21.11.00.90.80.70.60.60.50.50.50.40.40.40.40.3

4.34.44.54.44.24.24.44.85.25.76.26.67.07.47.77.97.87.47.16.76.35.95.34.84.44.13.83.73.73.83.94.24.55.05.56.16.56.97.47.88.08.07.87.36.76.25.75.04.33.73.12.72.32.11.91.71.51.41.21.11.00.90.80.70.70.60.60.60.50.50.50.50.40.4

3.03.33.43.53.63.73.84.04.34.75.05.35.65.86.16.36.46.46.15.95.75.55.34.94.64.34.03.83.73.73.73.94.14.34.75.05.35.55.75.96.16.36.36.05.75.45.14.84.43.93.43.02.62.32.11.91.71.61.41.31.21.11.00.90.80.80.70.70.70.70.60.60.60.60.5

2.52.72.93.03.23.33.53.84.04.44.74.95.15.35.55.75.75.75.65.45.35.14.94.74.44.24.03.83.73.73.73.83.94.04.34.54.64.74.84.85.05.05.04.84.64.44.34.13.83.53.12.82.52.32.11.91.81.71.51.41.31.21.21.11.11.01.01.01.00.90.90.90.90.80.8

2.22.42.62.82.93.13.33.63.84.14.44.64.95.15.45.65.65.65.55.35.14.94.64.44.24.03.93.73.63.63.63.63.63.73.83.94.04.14.14.24.34.34.24.14.03.83.63.43.23.02.82.62.42.22.12.01.91.81.71.61.51.51.41.41.41.41.41.41.41.41.41.41.31.31.2

2.12.32.42.62.83.03.23.43.73.94.24.54.85.05.35.55.55.55.35.14.94.74.54.34.13.93.73.63.53.43.33.33.33.33.33.33.33.33.43.43.53.53.43.33.23.02.92.82.62.52.42.32.22.12.02.01.91.91.81.81.81.81.81.81.91.92.02.02.12.12.12.01.91.91.7

2.02.12.32.52.72.93.13.43.73.94.24.54.85.15.35.55.65.55.45.24.94.74.54.24.03.83.63.43.33.13.13.02.92.82.82.72.72.72.72.72.72.72.62.62.52.32.22.12.12.02.01.91.91.91.91.91.91.92.02.02.12.12.22.32.42.52.62.72.82.92.92.82.72.52.4

1.82.02.22.42.62.83.13.43.74.14.44.75.05.25.45.65.65.65.55.35.14.94.64.34.03.73.53.23.02.92.72.62.52.42.32.22.22.12.12.02.02.01.91.91.81.71.71.61.61.61.61.61.71.71.81.81.92.02.12.22.42.52.72.93.03.23.33.53.63.73.73.63.53.33.1

1.71.92.12.32.52.83.13.53.94.34.75.05.25.55.76.06.05.95.75.55.35.14.84.44.03.73.33.02.82.62.52.32.22.01.91.81.71.61.51.51.41.41.31.31.31.21.21.21.21.31.31.41.51.51.71.81.92.02.22.42.62.83.13.43.73.94.04.14.34.44.44.34.24.03.8

1.61.82.02.22.42.73.13.54.14.65.25.66.06.46.87.17.27.16.76.46.05.65.24.74.13.63.22.82.62.42.22.01.91.71.61.51.41.31.21.11.11.01.01.00.90.90.90.91.01.01.11.21.31.41.51.71.82.02.22.42.73.13.53.94.34.64.85.05.25.45.55.35.14.84.6

1.61.71.92.12.32.63.03.64.35.05.86.57.17.88.58.68.78.88.37.67.06.45.74.94.23.63.12.72.42.22.01.91.71.61.41.31.21.11.01.00.90.80.80.80.80.80.80.80.80.91.01.11.21.31.51.61.82.02.22.52.83.33.94.45.05.55.96.36.77.07.16.96.56.15.7

1.61.71.92.12.42.73.13.74.45.26.27.18.08.89.610.110.210.19.48.67.86.95.95.04.23.63.12.72.42.11.91.71.61.51.31.21.11.00.90.90.80.70.70.70.70.70.70.70.80.90.91.01.11.31.41.61.71.92.22.52.93.44.14.95.66.47.17.88.58.78.88.88.27.46.8

1.61.82.02.22.52.83.33.94.55.36.27.48.59.610.410.810.510.810.29.38.27.05.95.14.33.73.22.72.42.11.91.71.61.41.31.21.11.00.90.80.70.70.60.60.60.60.60.70.80.90.91.01.11.31.41.61.82.02.22.63.03.54.25.06.06.97.98.89.59.910.19.99.38.47.5

1.71.92.12.42.73.13.64.24.95.76.77.69.010.211.211.911.111.710.99.88.57.36.35.54.64.03.42.92.52.22.01.81.61.51.31.21.10.90.80.70.70.60.60.60.60.60.60.70.80.91.01.11.21.31.51.61.82.12.42.73.23.74.45.16.07.28.49.510.410.710.410.810.19.18.0

1.71.92.22.52.93.33.94.65.46.47.69.110.311.111.812.311.212.111.510.710.08.67.26.05.14.33.63.12.72.32.01.81.61.41.31.11.00.90.80.70.60.60.50.50.50.60.60.70.70.91.01.11.21.41.51.72.02.22.63.03.54.14.85.76.87.88.810.111.211.911.011.710.89.78.4

1.82.02.32.63.03.54.04.85.86.98.29.811.312.613.514.214.614.013.212.210.89.27.76.45.34.43.73.22.72.32.01.81.61.41.31.11.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.50.50.50.60.60.70.81.01.11.21.41.51.72.02.32.73.13.74.45.36.47.69.210.611.612.513.011.512.812.211.310.2

1.92.12.32.63.03.43.94.65.46.47.58.99.810.811.512.111.311.911.210.39.58.47.05.95.04.23.63.02.62.32.01.81.61.41.21.11.00.80.70.60.60.50.50.50.50.50.60.60.70.81.01.11.21.41.51.72.02.32.73.13.74.45.36.47.79.310.812.012.913.513.113.312.611.610.3

2.02.22.42.73.03.33.74.35.05.76.57.58.910.011.011.410.811.510.79.68.37.06.15.34.53.83.32.82.52.21.91.71.51.41.21.10.90.80.70.60.50.50.50.50.50.50.50.60.70.80.91.11.21.41.51.72.02.22.63.03.54.14.95.86.98.08.910.211.211.911.311.710.89.88.6

2.22.42.62.83.03.33.64.14.75.46.37.48.49.410.210.610.310.59.99.08.06.95.84.84.13.53.02.62.32.01.81.61.51.31.21.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.40.50.50.60.70.80.91.01.21.31.51.61.82.12.42.73.23.74.45.16.07.18.49.610.510.810.310.910.29.28.0

2.62.83.03.13.23.43.74.14.75.46.27.17.98.69.39.69.89.79.08.27.46.65.74.84.03.32.82.52.21.91.71.61.41.21.11.00.90.80.70.60.50.50.40.40.40.50.50.60.70.80.91.01.11.21.41.51.71.92.22.52.93.54.14.95.96.97.98.99.69.89.710.09.48.57.6
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	Kuna City Hall  (  Council Chambers  (  751 W. 4th St.  (  Kuna, Idaho
	2. CONSENT AGENDA
	a. Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes for February 14, 2017.
	b. 15-05-S (Subdivision) and 15-08-DR (Design Review) – Silvertrail Addition Subdivision; A request from Viper Investments, LLC, for preliminary plat approval and design review for a new residential subdivision. Applicant proposes 421 single family ho...
	c. 16-12-AN (Annexation) – Renascence Farm and Mason Creek Farms; Applicants, Renascence Farm, LLC, Spaulding and Anderson and Mason Creek Farm, LLC, requests approval to annex approximately 165 +/- acres into the City of Kuna. Applicant requests the ...
	3. NEW BUSINESS
	4. PUBLIC HEARING
	P&Z MM 02.14.17.pdf
	b. 16-03-CPM (Comprehensive Plan Map Amend) and 16-10-AN (Annexation) Ashton Estates Subdivision; Requesting approval to amend the Comprehensive Plan (Comp Plan) Map, from Medium Density Residential to Mixed-Use General over approximately 50.6 acres i...




